

### **ROANOKE COUNTY**

# FINANCE & MANAGEMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT PURCHASING DIVISION On behalf of the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors

#### **INVITATION FOR BID**

## IFB # 2026-064 Roanoke County Parks, Recreation & Tourism Building Renovations

OPENING DATE: December 9, 2025 OPENING TIME: 2:00 P.M.

The Invitation to Bid and related documents may be obtained during normal business hours from the Purchasing Division, at the Roanoke County Administration Building, 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300F, Roanoke, VA 24018. This document may be viewed and/or downloaded from eVA at the following website: <a href="https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke">https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke</a>. If you have any problems accessing the documents, you may contact Purchasing at (540) 772-2061.

A non-mandatory pre-bid conference will be held at 10:00 AM on November 14, 2025 at the project site (4818 Starkey Rd., Roanoke VA 24018).

## THIS PUBLIC BODY DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS

DATE of IFB: November 5, 2025

#### INVITATION FOR BID (IFB)

IFB No. 2026-064

Issue Date: November 5, 2025

Title: Roanoke County Parks, Recreation & Tourism Building Renovations

Issued By: County of Roanoke Purchasing Division,

on behalf of the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors

Roanoke County Administration Building 5204 Bernard Drive, SW, Suite 300-F

Roanoke, VA 24018-0798 Phone (540) 772-2061

Email: KHoyt@roanokecountyva.gov

Sealed Bids must be received via in-person delivery, mail, or electronic submission through eVA, on or before 2:00 P.M., December 9, 2025.

If bids are hand delivered or mailed, send directly to the Purchasing Division at the address listed above. To submit an online bid through eVA, refer to the online bidding instructions available at the following link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KSxcAkOekW0.

#### Further instructions to Bidders are outlined in Sections 7 and 8 of this IFB.

All questions must be submitted in writing before 5:00 p.m., **November 21, 2025**. If necessary, an addendum will be issued and posted to eVA at the following website: <a href="https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke">https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke</a>.

THIS PUBLIC BODY DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE AGAINST FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS.

The County reserves the right to cancel this IFB and/or reject any or all bids and to waive any informalities in any bid.

This section is to be completed by the Offeror and this page must be returned with the bid. In compliance with this Invitation For Bid and subject to all terms and conditions imposed herein, which are hereby incorporated herein by reference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the services and/or items requested in this solicitation if the undersigned is selected as the successful Bidder. No Bid may be withdrawn within a period of sixty (60) days after Bid opening except for clerical errors, as set forth in part (1) of Section 2.2-4330(B), Virginia Code, 1950, as amended. Notices of bid withdrawal must be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Division.

My signature certifies that the bid as submitted complies with all requirements specified in this Invitation for Bid ("IFB"). If this Bid is accepted by the Owner, to provide the services and/or items in accordance with this Invitation for Bid and to execute a Contract/Purchase Order substantially similar to the attached Contract/Purchase Order Terms and Conditions for such services and/or items. My signature also certifies that by submitting a bid in response to this IFB, the Bidder represents that in the preparation and submission of this bid, the Bidder did not, either directly or indirectly, enter into any combination or arrangement with any person or business entity, or enter into any agreement, participate in any collusion, or otherwise take any action in the restraining of free, competitive bidding in violation of the Sherman Act (15 U.S.C. Section 1), Sections 59.1-9.1 through 59.1-9.17, or Section 2.2-4367 of the Code of Virginia.

#### SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW.

I hereby certify that I am authorized to sign as a legal representative for the business entity submitting this bid in response to IFB 2026-064.

Legal Name and Address	of Firm:			
		Date:		
		By:		
		Name:		
	Zip:	Title:	(Please Print)	
Phone:		FAX:		
Email:		_ Business License#		
Virginia State Corporation C	Commission Ide	ntification Number:		

## INVITATION FOR BID NO. 2026-064 Roanoke County Parks, Recreation & Tourism Building Renovations

#### Contents

SECTION 1. PURPOSE6
SECTION 2. BACKGROUND6
SECTION 3. SERVICES AND/OR ITEMS REQUIRED6
SECTION 4. REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS FOR BIDDERS /OR NOT USED 6
SECTION 5. TERM OF CONTRACT OR TIME OF PERFORMANCE OR NOT USED. 7
SECTION 6. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES7
SECTION 7. BID SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS8
SECTION 8. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS8
SECTION 9. MISCELLANEOUS13
SECTION 10. EVALUATION FOR LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE
BIDDER14
SECTION 11. CONTRACTOR'S AND SUBCONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE15
SECTION 12. NEGOTIATIONS WITH LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE
BIDDER15
SECTION 13. BID AWARD15
SECTION 14. FAITH BASED ORGANIZATIONS15
SECTION 15. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNITY16
SECTION 16. PROTESTS16
SECTION 17. COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT16
SECTION 18. INFORMATION ON CONTRACT/PURCHASE ORDER TO BE

AWARDED	16
ATTACHMENT A: BID FORM/SPECIFICATIONS	18
ATTACHMENT B: VIRGINIA STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION (SCC)	
REGISTRATION INFORMATION	20
ATTACHMENT C: NOTICE OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION FORM	21
ATTACHMENT D: CONSENT TO CONDUCT TRANSACTION BY ELECTRON	IC
MEANS	22
ATTACHMENT E: SAMPLE CONTRACT and TERMS AND CONDITONS	23
EXHIBIT 1: SAMPLE CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE AND BOND REQUIREMENTS	57
EXHIBIT 2: SCOPE OF WORK/FEE SCHEDULE	62
EXHIBIT 3: BID FORM COMPLETED BY CONTRACTOR	63
ATTACHMENT F: ASBESTOS INSPECTION REPORT AND ASBESTOS	
ABATEMENT	64
ATTACHMENT G: PRO IECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS	65

## COUNTY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA INVITATION FOR BID NO. 2026-064

#### Roanoke County Parks, Recreation & Tourism Building Renovations

#### **SECTION 1. PURPOSE**

The purpose of this Invitation for Bid (IFB) is the procurement of construction services to provide renovations to a portion of the department's office area, including but not limited to interior partitions, electrical power, and HVAC replacement.

The County of Roanoke, on behalf of the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors (hereinafter referred to as "Owner"), invites any qualified Bidder to respond to this IFB by submitting a Bid for such work, service, and/or items consistent with the terms and conditions herein set forth.

#### **SECTION 2. BACKGROUND**

Not used.

#### SECTION 3. SERVICES AND/OR ITEMS REQUIRED

A description and/or listing of the services and/or items that the Successful Bidder will be required to provide to the Owner under this IFB are those that are set forth in Exhibit 2 of the Sample Contract (Attachment F) attached to this IFB. Each Bidder should carefully read and review all such documents.

The following are the services and/or items that the Successful Bidder shall provide to the Owner:

A. Roanoke County Parks, Recreation & Tourism Building Renovations, located at **4818 Starkey Road, Roanoke, VA 24018**, per the scope of the specifications and the project plans included as **Attachment G** to this IFB 2026-064.

#### SECTION 4. REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS FOR BIDDERS /OR NOT USED

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING A VALID LICENSE TO USE ALL COPYRIGHTED DOCUMENTS SPECIFIED BUT NOT INCLUDED IN THE IFB.

#### AGREEMENT AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT

A. Attachment E: Sample Contract and Terms or Conditions.

#### **FORMS**

Use the following forms for the specified purposes unless otherwise indicated elsewhere in Contract Documents.

- A. Bond Forms:
  - 1. Bid Bond Form: AIA A310.

- 2. Performance and Payment Bond Form: AIA A312.
- B. Post-Award Certificates and Other Forms:
  - 1. Certificate of Insurance Form: ACORD Certificate of Insurance 25.
  - 2. Schedule of Values Form: AIA G703.
  - 3. Application for Payment Forms: AIA G702 with AIA G703 (for Contractors).
- C. Clarification and Modification Forms:
  - Request for Information Form: AIA G716.
  - 2. Architect's Supplemental Instructions Form: AIA G710.
  - 3. Construction Change Directive Form: AIA G714.
  - 4. Work Changes Proposal Request Form: AIA G709-2001.
  - 5. Change Order Form: AIA G701.
- D. Closeout Forms:
  - 1. Certificate of Substantial Completion Form: AIA G704.
  - 2. Affidavit of Payment of Debts and Claims Form: AIA G706.
  - Contractor's Affidavit of Release of Liens Form: AIA G706A
  - 4. Consent of Surety to Final Payment Form: AIA G707.

#### REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. AIA A310 Bid Bond.
- B. AIA A312 Performance Bond and Payment Bond.
- C. AlA G701 Change Order.
- D. AIA G702 Application and Certificate for Payment.
- E. AIA G703 Continuation Sheet.
- F. AIA G704 Certificate of Substantial Completion.
- G. AIA G706A Contractor's Affidavit of Release of Liens.
- H. AIA G707 Consent of Surety to Final Payment.
- I. AIA G709-2001 Proposal Request.
- J. AIA G710 Architect's Supplemental Instructions.
- **K.** AIA G714 Construction Change Directive.

#### SECTION 5. TERM OF CONTRACT OR TIME OF PERFORMANCE OR NOT USED

- A. The Successful Bidder shall start the performance of any resultant Contract as fixed by a notice to proceed given by the Owner to the Successful Bidder and fully and completely perform the Contract within 180 consecutive calendar days after such date, all in accordance with the Contract provisions.
- B. All terms and conditions shall remain in force for the term of the Contract.

#### **SECTION 6. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES**

Payment(s) to the Successful Bidder shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the resultant Contract or Purchase Order, subject to final approval by the Owner.

#### **SECTION 7. BID SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS**

- A. Sealed Bids must be received by hand delivery, mail, or electronic submission through eVA, at or before 2:00 p.m., local time, on December 9, 2025.
- B. <u>If submitting electronically via eVA</u>, Bidder should refer to the online bidding instructions available at the following link: <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KSxcAkOekW0">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KSxcAkOekW0</a>. In order to submit a bid through eVA the Bidder must be a registered vendor in eVA. If Bidder encounters any issues submitting an online bid through eVA, Bidder shall contact eVA Customer Care for assistance. The time of receipt for bids submitted electronically through eVA shall be determined by the time clock included in the eVA submittal system. The electronic bid submission shall contain a second copy of the bid redacted to remove all confidential and proprietary material.
- C. If hand delivering or mailing a sealed bid response, the bid package must be received by the County of Roanoke Purchasing Division, at the Roanoke County Administration Building, 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300F, Roanoke, VA 24018, at or before the stated bid due date and time, at which time all Bids physically received will be publicly opened and read. Bids received after 2:00 p.m. will NOT be accepted or considered. The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock stamp in the Purchasing Office or if it is not working, such time shall be determined by the Purchasing official who is to open the bids.

Each Bid, one (1) <u>original</u>, marked as such and one (1) <u>copy</u>, marked as such, must be appropriately signed by an authorized representative of the Offeror, and must be submitted in a **SEALED** envelope or package. A removable media storage device containing two (2) digital copies of the bid, one complete copy as submitted, and one redacted to remove all confidential and proprietary material, should be included in the bid packet. The notation "PRT Building Renovations", IFB No. 2026-064, Bidders Name, and the specified opening time and date should be clearly marked on the front of that sealed envelope or package.

D. FAXED OR E-MAILED BIDS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE.

#### SECTION 8. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

The Invitation for Bid and related documents may be obtained during normal business hours from the Purchasing Division, at the Roanoke County Administration Building, 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300F, Roanoke, VA 24018. This document may be viewed and/or downloaded from eVA: <a href="https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke">https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke</a>.

If you have any problems accessing the documents, you may contact Purchasing at (540) 772-2061.

If bids are hand delivered or mailed, send directly to the Purchasing Division at the address listed above. If the Roanoke County Administration Building is closed for business at the time scheduled for the Bid opening, the sealed bid will be accepted and opened on the next business day of the County, at the originally scheduled hour.

All questions must be submitted in writing before 5:00 P.M. on November 21, 2025. If necessary, an addendum will be issued and posted to eVA at the following website: <a href="https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke">https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke</a>.

## A non-mandatory pre-bid conference will be held at 10:00 AM on November 14, 2025, at the project site (4818 Starkey Road, Roanoke VA 24018).

A. If you download this IFB and intend to submit a bid, you should notify Purchasing that you have done so. However, each Bidder is solely responsible for ensuring that such Bidder has the current, complete version of the IFB documents, including any addenda, before submitting a bid. Receipt by the bidder of such addendum should be acknowledged on the Bid Form and/or addendum. The County Purchasing Division or its designee will issue Addenda that will be posted to the on the eVA website.

#### B. <u>IMPORTANT NOTICE - ADDENDUMS AND NOTICES OF AWARD</u>

Interested parties are encouraged to visit the eVA website often to obtain addenda if they are not signed up to receive automatic notifications from eVA. The County does not provide direct notification of changes to the original solicitation documents. The County assumes no responsibility or liability for informing recipients of downloaded documents or changes to original documents. It is the sole responsibility of those bidders/offerors to ensure they have copies of any addenda.

The official solicitation documents, addenda and project information are those posted on the eVA website. The County is not responsible for 3rd party postings of our solicitations or information about our solicitations.

- C. Payment terms and delivery date(s) must be shown on the submitted Bid, if applicable.
- D. All Bids are to be submitted in accordance with all terms, conditions, rules, regulations, requirements and specifications identified in and by this IFB.
- E. Bids are to be on the Form as provided with **OR** as **otherwise specified** in this IFB. If a Bid Form is provided, **no changes are to be made to the Bid Form**. Any changes to Bid amounts must be initialed.
- F. All Bids shall be signed by a person on behalf of the responding Bidder who is appropriately authorized to do so. The printed name of that authorized person should be shown as well. Any Bid submitted should be in the complete legal name of the Bidder responding. No Bid will be considered from any Bidder not properly licensed as may be required by law.
- G. Except in cases of emergency, all bids *for construction contracts* shall be accompanied by a bid bond from a surety company selected by the bidder, which is legally authorized to do business in Virginia.
  - (1) A bid, payment or performance bond for contracts for goods or services other than construction may be required if provided in the Invitation for Bid.

- (2) The amount of the bid bond shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the total amount of the bid.
- (3) In lieu of a bid bond, a bidder may furnish a certified check or cash escrow in the face amount required for the bond.
- (4) Upon award of any public construction contract exceeding \$100,000 awarded to any prime contractor, such contractor shall furnish:
  - i. Performance bond in the sum of the contract amount.
  - ii. Payment bond in the sum of the contract amount.
- (5) Performance and/or payment bonds may be required for construction contracts below \$100,000 at the discretion of the Owner.
- (6) In cases of emergency performance bonds/payment bonds are required within ten (10) calendar days of notice to proceed or project commencement.
- H. Bids that have been appropriately opened cannot be changed, adjusted, corrected or modified in any way other than complete withdrawal. The County's procedures for withdrawal of bids (whether construction or other than construction) is that set forth in Code of Virginia, §2.2-4330(A)&(B)(1), which allows withdrawal of a Bid due to an error such as an unintentional arithmetic error or an unintentional omission of a quantity of work, labor or material made directly in the compilation of a Bid, which unintentional arithmetic error or unintentional omission can be clearly shown by objective evidence drawn from inspection of original work papers, documents and materials used in the preparation of the Bid. Withdrawal must be requested within two days of the Bid opening by delivering to the County original work papers, documents, and materials used in preparation of the Bid.
- I. All Bids, appropriately received, will be evaluated by considering the requirements set forth in the IFB, the quality, workmanship, economy of operation, suitability for intended purpose, delivery, payment terms and price of product or service being requested in this Bid.
- J. Bids are to be submitted on the type, brand, make, and/or kind of product and/or service requested or its approved equal, to be solely determined by the Owner, unless otherwise specified. Should a Bid be for a product and/or service as an equal, the name, make, model and type of that which is being Bid must be clearly stated. The Bid must also be accompanied by descriptive literature of the product or service Bid to allow for evaluation. Failure to provide this information may result in the Bid being considered non-responsive and may not be considered.

It is not the intent of the specifications to be proprietary, nor to exclude any manufacturer or dealer. Deviations will be given consideration if they are considered to be suitable and acceptable for comparison. Any deviations must be submitted, in writing, with your bid. Deviations discovered after bid award or material receipt, not stated in your bid, shall be grounds for disqualification and nullification of order. It is the responsibility of the Offeror to prove that the deviation is equal to the product/service specified. The Owner will make the final determination as to whether the product is equivalent.

K. If an award is made for the item(s) and/or services requested, a notice of award will be made which will be posted for public review on eVA at <a href="https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke">https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyname=County%20of%20Roanoke</a>, or you may contact Purchasing directly at (540) 772-2061 to request a copy of the award notification.

Upon completion of any Contracted Work or Purchase Order, payment will be made only to the Successful Bidder at the address as shown on the Contract/Purchase Order. If the remittance address is other than the address on the Bid, it must be clearly noted and explained in the Bid. Contract/Purchase Order(s) will be paid only when the items and/or services have been supplied to and approved by the Owner.

- L. All items, identified in this IFB, are to be quoted and provided **F.O.B. DESTINATION-INSIDE DELIVERY**, unless otherwise stated in this IFB. All furniture items, if any, are to be put together and set in place.
- M. The County reserves the right to cancel this IFB or reject any or all Bids, to waive any informalities in any Bid and to purchase any whole or part of the items and/or services listed in the IFB.
- N. Each Bidder is to notify in writing the Purchasing Division if any of Bidder's owners, officers, employees, or agents, or their immediate family members, is currently or has been in the past year, an employee of the County of Roanoke or Owner, or has any responsibility or authority with the County or Owner that might affect the procurement transaction or any claim resulting therefrom. If so, please provide the Purchasing Division with the complete name and address of each such person and their connection to the County of Roanoke or Owner. Each Bidder is advised that the Ethics in Public Contracting and Conflicts of Interests Act of the Code of Virginia, as set forth in this IFB, apply to this IFB. Such information should be provided in writing before the Bid opening date or may also be provided with the Bid response.
- O. The attention of each Bidder is directed to VA Code Sections 54.1-1100 et seq. which requires certain licenses for contractors, tradesmen and others. Each Bidder is required to determine which license, if any, it is required to have under such sections. Each Bidder shall so state on the Bid Form, or in its response, if no Bid Form is provided, whether it has a VA license under such sections and, if so, the type of license and/or license number. Failure to include this information may result in the Bid being rejected as non-responsive.
- P. Bid Submittals shall include:
  - (1) Signature Page (p. 2-3) of this Invitation for Bid, signed
  - (2) **Attachment A: Bid Form** (Prices shall include all labor, material, delivery costs, overhead and profit.)
  - (3) Any Required Attachments: B, C, & D
  - (4) Signed copies of any Addenda issued
  - (5) Bid Bond

#### Failure to do so may result in the Bid being determined non-responsive.

Questions or concerns may be addressed by contacting Kate Hoyt by phone at 540-283-8149, or by email at KHoyt@roanokecountyva.gov.

Q. Ethics in Public Contracting. The provisions, requirements, and prohibitions as contained in Sections 2.2-4367 through 2.2-4377, of the Virginia Code, pertaining to bidders, offerors, contractors, and subcontractors are applicable to this IFB.

- R. Conflict of Interests Act. The provisions, requirements, and prohibitions as contained in Sections 2.2-3100, et seq., of the Virginia Code are applicable to this IFB.
- S. The procurement provisions of the Virginia Public Procurement Act as well as the County Procurement Manual, apply to this RFP, unless specifically modified herein. The County's Procurement Manual can be reviewed on the County's electronic procurement website.
- T. The Owner may request clarification from any of the Bidders after review of the Bids received.
- U. The Owner is not liable for any costs incurred by any Bidder in connection with this IFB or any response by any Bidder to this IFB. The expenses incurred by a Bidder in the preparation, submission, and presentation of the Bid are the sole responsibility of the Bidder and may not be charged to the Owner.
- V. General and/or technical questions regarding the Scope of Services and/or items required, or procurement questions under this IFB may be directed *in writing* to Kate Hoyt, Buyer, at KHoyt@roanokecountyva.gov.
- W. Each Bidder is required to state if it has ever been debarred, fined, had a contract terminated, or found not be a responsible bidder or Offer or by any federal, state, or local government and/or private entity. If so, please give the details of each such matter and include this information with Bidder's response.
- X. Data on Convictions for Certain Crimes and Child Abuse and Neglect Certification of Contractor: The Consultant certifies that none of the persons who will provide services requiring direct contact with students on school property during school hours or during school-sponsored activities has been convicted of any of the following felony or misdemeanor offenses: felony sex or violence offenses, other felony offenses or misdemeanor sex offenses within the past ten years.
- Y. The Consultant further understands and acknowledges (1) that if he makes a materially false statement regarding any of the above offenses, he will be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor and may forfeit profits derived from the contract. Further, the Consultant understands and acknowledges that before any person is permitted to provide such services subsequent to this certification, he must complete a new certification regarding such person in a form satisfactory to the Owner. **Data and Convictions information will be requested before the Owner enters into a contract when required.**
- Z. Each Bidder who is a stock or Nonstock Corporation, Limited Liability Company, business trust, or a limited partnership or other business entity shall be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as a domestic or foreign business entity if required by law. Each such Bidder shall include in its bid response the Identification Number issued to it by the Virginia State Corporation Commission (SCC) and should list its business entity name as it is listed with the SCC. Any Bidder that is not required to be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a domestic or foreign business entity as required by law shall include in its bid response a statement describing why the Bidder is not required to be so authorized. (See Va. Code Section 2.2-4311.2).
- AA. Unless participating in a pending solicitation, vendors/prospective vendors may visit County or Owner departments without advance approval of the Purchasing Division to

make sales calls, drop off literature, or conduct demonstrations. Advance appointments must be confirmed with the Director or their designee for the department to be visited.

Direct contact with any County or Owner employee without the permission of the Purchasing Division, on the subject of this solicitation, is strictly forbidden.

During an active solicitation all communications (email, phone, text, letter) must be conducted through the Purchasing Division. Purchasing staff will coordinate responses to any inquiries, as necessary. If any vendor involved in a pending solicitation or bid violates this communication protocol, any submittals from the vendor may be rejected/disqualified at the discretion of the Purchasing Division.

#### **SECTION 9. MISCELLANEOUS**

- A. Ownership of all data, materials, and documentation originated and prepared for the Owner pursuant to the IFB shall belong exclusively to the Owner and be subject to public inspection in accordance with the *Virginia Freedom of Information Act*. The trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by the Bidder shall not be subject to public disclosure under the *Freedom of Information Act*, unless otherwise required by law or a court. However, the Bidder must invoke the protection of Section 2.2-4342(F) of the Code of Virginia, in writing, either before or at the time the data or other material is submitted. The written notice must SPECIFICALLY identify the data or materials to be protected and state the reason why protection is necessary. The proprietary or trade secret material submitted must be identified by some distinct method such as highlighting or underlining and must indicate only the specific words, figures, or paragraphs that constitute trade secret or proprietary information. The classification of an entire bid document, line item prices, and/or total bid prices as proprietary, or trade secrets, is NOT ACCEPTABLE and may result in REJECTION of the Bid.
- B. All Bidders shall be solely responsible for making sure that they have the most current and complete version of this IFB and all addenda that may have been issued for this IFB and that such Bidder has examined all such documents and data. Any interpretation, correction, or change of the IFB will be made by an addendum. Interpretations, corrections or changes of this IFB made in any other manner will not be binding and Bidders must not rely upon such interpretations, corrections, or changes. The County Purchasing Division or its designee will issue Addenda that will be posted eVA at https://mvendor.cgieva.com/Vendor/public/AllOpportunities.jsp?status=Open&agencyna me=County%20of%20Roanoke.
- C. No Bidder shall confer on any public employee having official responsibility for a purchasing transaction any payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit or money, service, or anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater value is exchanged.
- D. The County or Owner may make investigations to determine the ability of the Bidder to perform the work and/or provide the services and/or items as described in this IFB. The County and Owner reserve the right to reject any Bid if the Bidder fails to satisfy the County and Owner that it is qualified to carry out the obligations and requirements requested in this IFB.

- E. The Successful Bidder must comply with the nondiscrimination provisions of Virginia Code Section 2.2-4311, which are incorporated herein by reference.
- F. The Successful Bidder must comply with the drug-free workplace provisions of Virginia Code Section 2.2-4312, which are incorporated herein by reference.
- G. It is the policy of the County of Roanoke to maximize participation whenever possible by minority and women owned business enterprises in all aspects of County contracting opportunities.
- H. The Successful Bidder shall comply with all applicable County, State, and Federal laws, codes, provisions, and regulations. The successful Bidder shall not during the performance of any resultant contract knowingly employ an unauthorized alien as defined in the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.
- I. Providers of any outside services and/or items shall be subject to the same conditions and requirements as the Successful Bidder in regards to law, code, or regulation compliance. The Owner reserves the right of approval for any subcontract work, including the costs thereof.

## SECTION 10. EVALUATION FOR LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE BIDDER

To determine the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder with respect to this Bid, the following factors, among such others as will protect and preserve the interest of the Owner may be considered:

- A. Base Bid cost as set forth on the Bid Form;
- B. The specified terms and discounts, if any, of the Bid;
- C. The ability, capacity and skill of the Bidder to perform the Contract and/or provide the services and/or items required;
- D. Whether the Bidder can perform the Contract and/or perform the services and/or provide the items promptly, or within the time specified, without delay or interference;
- E. The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience and efficiency of the Bidder;
- F. The quality of performance on previous contracts or services;
- G. The previous and existing compliance by the Bidder with laws and ordinances relating to other contracts, purchase orders, items and/or services provided by Bidder in other matters;
- H. The equipment and facilities available to the Bidder to perform the Contract and/or provide the services and/or items requested in the IFB;
- I. The sufficiency of the financial resources and ability of the Bidder to perform the Contract and/or provide the services and/or items requested in the IFB;

- J. The quality, availability, and adaptability of the supplies, materials, equipment and/or services the Bidder can provide for the particular use and/or work requested in the IFB; and
- K. The ability of the Bidder to provide future maintenance, parts, and service for the items requested in the IFB.

#### SECTION 11. CONTRACTOR'S AND SUBCONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE

Successful Bidder, and any of its subcontractors, shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain during the life of the resulting Contract/Purchase Order the insurance policies and/or bonds required. Any required insurance policies and/or bonds shall be effective prior to the beginning of any work or other performance by Successful Bidder, or any of its subcontractors, under any resultant Contract/Purchase Order. All such insurance shall be primary and noncontributory to any insurance or self-insurance the Owner may have. The policies and coverages required are those as may be referred to in the sample contract and/or the terms and conditions attached to this IFB, but shall include workers' compensation coverage regardless of the number of employees, unless otherwise approved by the Owner's Risk Manager.

## SECTION 12. NEGOTIATIONS WITH LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE BIDDER

If the bid by the lowest responsive and responsible bidder exceeds available funds, the Owner reserves the right to negotiate with the apparent lowest responsible bidder pursuant to County Code Chapter 17 (Ord. No. 3350, S2-30,12-14-82). State Code 2.2.4318. The conditions and procedures under which such negotiation may be undertaken are that the appropriate Owner officials shall determine that the lowest responsive and responsible bid exceeds available funds and notify such bidder in writing of its desire to negotiate. Thereafter, negotiations with the apparent low bidder may be held to obtain a Contract within available funds involving discussions of reduction of quantity, quality, or other cost saving mechanisms. Any such negotiated Contract shall be subject to final approval of the Owner, in the sole discretion of the Owner.

#### **SECTION 13. BID AWARD**

If an award of a Contract/Purchase Order is made, it will be awarded to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. If an award of a contract is made, notification of such award will be posted for public review on eVA, or you may contact Purchasing directly at (540) 772-2061 to request a copy of the award notification.

#### **SECTION 14. FAITH BASED ORGANIZATIONS**

Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-4343.1, be advised that the Owner does not discriminate against faith-based organizations.

#### **SECTION 15. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNITY**

Successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, losses, damages, claims, causes of action, suits of any nature, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, resulting from or arising out of Successful Bidder's or its employees, agents, or subcontractors actions, activities, or omissions, negligent or otherwise, on or near Owner's property or arising in any way out of or resulting from any of the work or items to be provided under the Contract/Purchase Order, and this includes, without limitation, any fines or penalties, violations of federal, state, or local laws or regulations, personal injury, wrongful death, or property damage claims or suits. Successful Bidder agrees to and shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless all the parties referred to above from any and all demands for fees, claims, suits, actions, causes of action, settlement or judgments based on the alleged or actual infringement or violation of any copyright, trademark, patent, invention, article, arrangement, or other apparatus that may be used in the performance of the Contract/Purchase Order.

#### **SECTION 16. PROTESTS**

Any Bidder who wishes to protest or object to any award made or other decisions Pursuant to this IFB may do so only in accordance with the provisions of Sections 2.2-4357, 4358, 4359, 4360, 4363, and 4364 of the Code of Virginia, and only if such is provided for in such Code section. Any such protest or objection must be in writing signed by a representative of the entity making the protest or objection and contain the information required by the applicable Code Sections set forth above. Such writing must be delivered to the County Purchasing Director within the required time period.

#### SECTION 17. COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT

Not used.

## SECTION 18. INFORMATION ON CONTRACT/PURCHASE ORDER TO BE AWARDED

The **Sample Contract** marked as Attachment E to IFB No. 2026-064 contains terms and conditions that the Owner will include in any Contract that may be awarded, but such terms and conditions may be added to, deleted, or modified as may be agreed to between the Owner and the Successful Bidder. However, if a Bidder has any objections to any of the terms or conditions set forth in the Sample or any changes or additions thereto that the Bidder wants to discuss before submitting a bid, the Bidder should set forth such objections, changes, or additions in written correspondence to the Roanoke County Purchasing Division at least five (5) days before the bid opening date for this IFB. Otherwise, submission of a bid by a Bidder will obligate such Bidder, if it is the Successful Bidder, to enter into a Contract/Purchase Order containing the same or substantially similar terms and conditions as contained in such Attachment, and to comply with such terms and conditions. Also, such terms and conditions, together with the requirements of this IFB, shall be deemed to be a part of any resultant Contract/Purchase Order that may be issued by the Owner to the Successful Bidder.

Please be advised that Roanoke County will not accept the following terms in any Contract that results from this solicitation:

- A. is in conflict with Virginia law;
- B. makes the contract subject to, governed by, or interpreted under the laws of a state or country other than the Commonwealth of Virginia;
- C. requires or permits any litigation arising from the public contract to be conducted in a court other than the Roanoke County General District Court or the Roanoke County Circuit Court:
- D. requires other dispute resolution proceeding arising from the public contract to be conducted outside of the Commonwealth of Virginia;
- E. limits the liability of the Contractor for actual damages to County property or for personal injury; or
- F. requires the County to indemnify or hold harmless the Contractor for the Contractor's (or Contractor's subcontractors' or agents') negligent actions or inactions."

END.

## IFB # 2026-064 ATTACHMENT A: BID FORM/SPECIFICATIONS

County of Roanoke Purchasing Division 5204 Bernard Drive, SW, Suite 300-F Roanoke, VA 24018-0798

The Owner reserves the right to add, delete, or adjust quantities as deemed necessary by the Owner.

Bids containing any conditions, omissions, unexplained erasures, alterations or items not called for in the bid, or irregularities of any kind, may be rejected by the Owner as being nonresponsive. No changes are to be made to the Bid Form. Any changes to a Bid Amount must be initialed by the person signing the Bid Form.

I/We hereby propose to furnish and provide renovations to the Roanoke County Parks, Recreation & Tourism building, in accordance with the enclosed general terms, conditions and specifications contained in IFB No. 2026-064. The Bid Form must be completed in blue or black ink. Discrepancies in the multiplication of units of work and the unit prices will be resolved in favor of the correct multiplication of the unit prices. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum. My/Our prices are as follows:

PRICES QUOTED SHALL BE FOB DESTINATION. Freight charges shall be included in the bid price.

**OFFER:** In compliance with and subject to your Invitation for Bid (IFB) and the documents therein specified, all of which are incorporated herein by reference, the undersigned bidder proposes to furnish all labor, equipment, and materials and perform all work necessary for the construction of this project, in accordance with the Construction Documents, Plans and Specifications dated September 30, 2025, and provide as **Attachment G** as prepared by Balzer & Associates, 1208 Corporate Circle, Roanoke, VA 24018 for the consideration of the following Lump Sum Amounts:

BASE BID - ROANOKE COUNTY PARKS, RECREATION & TOURISM BUILDING RENOVATIONS - Construction at 4818 Starkey Road, Roanoke, VA 24018.

	Dollars
(\$	).
	I/We can furnish and deliver all items within 180 calendar days after the date of the written
notic	e to proceed with the contract from the Owner. (Initial)

Bid Form continued on following page.

## IFB # 2026-064 ATTACHMENT A: BID FORM/SPECIFICATIONS (CONTINUED)

Payment terms are: Net 30. If Bidder offers a cash discount for prompt payment, it will only be considered in determining the lowest responsible Bidder if the Bidder allows at least twenty (20) days for the prompt payment after the goods or services are received or after the invoice is rendered, whichever is later.

To aid in the evaluation of bids, bidders must submit the original Bid Form and one copy of the Bid Form, Attachments, and detailed specification sheets, if applicable. If you fail to do so, your bid may be considered non-responsive and rejected.

Have you complied with	this requirement?\	∕es /No.
Indicate whether your business please include a copy of your F		S NOT located in Roanoke County. If it is ses license with your bid.
I/We acknowledge the receipt of	of:	
Addendum No	Dated	
Legal Name of Bidder:		
Authorized Signature:		
Printed Name:		
Date:		

#### IFB # 2026-064

## ATTACHMENT B: VIRGINIA STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION (SCC) REGISTRATION INFORMATION

The attention of each Bidder is directed to VA Code sections 54.1-1100, <u>et seq.</u> which requires certain licenses for contractors, tradesmen, and others. Each Bidder is required to determine which license, if any, it is required to have under such sections. Complete the following:

Bidder doe	es have <i>or</i> does not have a Virginia Contractor's License. (Check appropriate block)
If Bidder has	a Virginia Contractor's License, circle the class Bidder has and list the number.
Licensed "Cla	ass A", "Class B", or "Class C" Virginia Contractor Number:
	another type of Virginia License, please list the type and number: se: and number:
	resident or nonresident of Virginia. (Check appropriate blank.) See <u>VA Code</u> I-1100, <u>et seq).</u>
organized or a 50 of the Coldentification Furthermore, Virginia as a shall include	of each Bidder is directed to Virginia Code Section 2.2-4311.2 which requires a bidder authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia pursuant to Title 13.1 or Title ode of Virginia, as amended, or as otherwise required by law, shall include in its bid the Number issued to such bidder by the Virginia State Corporation Commission (SCC). any bidder that is not required to be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth of domestic or foreign business entity under Title 13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law in its bid a statement describing why the bidder is not required to be so authorized. Please of following by checking the appropriate line that applies and providing the requested
A	Bidder is a Virginia business entity organized and authorized to transact business in Virginia by the SCC and such bidder's/offeror's Identification Number issued to it by the SCC is:
В	SCC is:  Bidder is an out-of-state (foreign) business entity that is authorized to transact business in Virginia by the SCC and such bidder's Identification Number issued to it by the SCC is:
C	Bidder does not have an Identification Number issued to it by the SCC and such bidder is not required to be authorized to transact business in Virginia by the SCC for the following reason(s):

Signature page required with submittal of bid

Please attach additional sheets of paper if you need more space to explain why such bidder is not required

to be authorized to transact business in Virginia.

## IFB # 2026-064 ATTACHMENT C: NOTICE OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION FORM

Confidentiality References Protection in Accordance with the Code of Virginia, Section 2.2-4342

Section Title	Page #	Reason(s) for Withholding from Disclosure

**INSTRUCTIONS**: Identify the data or other materials to be protected and state the reasons by using the codes listed below. Indicate the specific words, figures, or paragraphs that constitute trade secrets or proprietary materials. **The classification of an entire bid or proposal document, line item prices, and/or total bid or proposal prices as proprietary or trade secret is not acceptable and will result in rejection of the bid or proposal.** 

- A) This page contains information relating to "trade secrets", and "proprietary information" including processes. Operations, style of work, or apparatus. Identify confidential statistical data. Amount or source of any income...of any person (or) partnership. See Virginia Public Procurement Act. Section 2.2-4342. Unauthorized disclosure of such information would violate the Trade Secrets Act 18 U.S.C. 1905.
- B) This page contains proprietary information including confidential, commercial or financial information, which was provided to the Government on a voluntary basis and is of the type that would not customarily release to the public. See Virginia Public Procurement Act, Section 2.2-4342; 5 U.S.C. 552 (b) (4); 12 C.F.R. 309.5(c) (4).
- C) This page contains proprietary information including confidential, commercial or financial information. The disclosure of such information would cause substantial harm to competitive position and impair the Government's ability to obtain necessary information from contractors in the future. 5 U.S.C. See Virginia Public Procurement Act. Section 2.2-4342; 552 (b) (4)12 C.F.R. 309.5(c) (4).

#### IFB # 2026-064

## ATTACHMENT D: CONSENT TO CONDUCT TRANSACTION BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

The Offeror	/Bidder agrees to	conduct this	transaction by	electronic
means, and	agrees that any de	ocuments nec	essary to accor	nplish this
transaction,	including but no	t limited to a	contract or an	nendments
thereto, may	y be executed and	delivered by	electronic sign	atures and
that the sig	natures appearing	on these do	cuments are th	e same as
handwritten	signatures for the	purpose of v	alidity, enforcea	ability, and
admissibility	y.	-		

Signature of Offeror/Bidder	

# ROANGE

#### IFB # 2026-064

#### **ATTACHMENT E: SAMPLE CONTRACT and TERMS AND CONDITIONS**

## COUNTY OF ROANOKE, VIRGINIA SAMPLE

## CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ROANOKE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND FOR PARKS, RECREATION & TOURISM BUILDING RENOVATIONS

This Contract # 2026-064 is dated , between the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors, hereinafter referred to as the "Owner", and legal name/address of contractor, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor," Choose an item. .

#### **WITNESSETH:**

WHEREAS, Contractor has been awarded this nonexclusive Contract by the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors for furnishing all equipment, materials, goods, labor, and services necessary for building renovations and associated work in accordance with this Contract and the documents referred to herein, all such items or services also being referred to hereinafter as the Work or Project.

#### NOW, THEREFORE, THE OWNER AND THE CONTRACTOR AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

#### SECTION 1. WORK/ SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AND DOCUMENTS.

For and in consideration of the money hereinafter specified to be paid by the Owner to the Contractor for the Work provided for in this Contract to be performed by the Contractor, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees with the Owner to fully perform the services, provide any materials called for to construct, and complete the Work called for by this Contract in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with this Contract and the documents referred to herein in order to fully and properly complete this Contract within the time stipulated, time being made of the essence for this Contract. It is also agreed by the parties hereto that the documents to this Contract consist of this Contract and the following documents listed below (Contract Documents), all of which are and constitute a part of this Contract as if attached hereto or set out in full herein, viz:

- 1. Insurance Requirements (Exhibit 1).
- 2. Scope of Work/Fee Schedule (Exhibit 2).
- 3. Bid Form Completed by Contractor and dated \_\_\_\_\_ (Exhibit 3). (To be provided after selection of Successful Bidder.)
- 4. Invitation for Bid No. 2026-064, which is incorporated herein by reference.

The parties agree that if there are any differences between the provisions of the above referenced documents, the provisions of the Owner documents and this Contract will control over any Contractor supplied documents or information.

#### **SECTION 2. CONTRACT AMOUNT.**

#### **SECTION 3. TERM OF CONTRACT.**

Not used.

#### **SECTION 4.** TIME OF PERFORMANCE.

The Contractor shall commence the Work to be performed under this Contract on such date as is established and fixed for such commencement by written notice (which may be initially given verbally in an emergency situation) to proceed given by the Owner representative to the Contractor, and the Contractor covenants and agrees to fully construct, perform, and complete the Work and/or provide the goods called for by this Contract established by such notice. The Contractor further agrees that the Work shall be started promptly upon receipt of such notice and shall be prosecuted regularly, diligently, and uninterruptedly at a rate of progress that will ensure full completion thereof in the shortest length of time consistent with the Contract Documents and that Contractor will cooperate and coordinate with the other Owner contractors or employees doing other work or using the area where Contractor is working.

#### **SECTION 5. PAYMENT.**

A. The Owner agrees to pay Contractor for the Contractor's complete and satisfactory performance of the Work, in the manner and at the time set out in this Contract. The Owner retains the right to setoff as to any amounts of money Contractor may owe the Owner. A written progress report may be requested by the Owner to accompany payment request and, if so, such progress report shall detail the work completed. Also, sufficient documentation of all costs, expenses, materials supplies, and/or hours worked may be requested by the Owner and, if so, may be required prior to the processing of any such request for payment. Payment will only be made for work actually performed, services actually supplied, and/or materials or goods furnished to the Owner, all of which need to be approved and accepted by the Owner prior to such payment, unless otherwise provided for in the Contract documents. Once a payment request has been received by the Owner, the Owner will process such payment request. If there are any objections or problems with the payment request, the Owner will notify the Contractor of such matters. If the payment request is approved and accepted by the Owner, payment will be made by the Owner to the Contractor not more than 30 days after such request has been approved.

- B. Also, sufficient documentation of all costs, expenses, materials supplied, and/or hours worked may be requested by the Owner and, if so, may be required prior to the processing of any such request for payment. Payment will only be made for work actually performed, services actually supplied, and/or materials or goods furnished to the Owner, all of which need to be approved and accepted by the Owner prior to such payment, unless otherwise provided for in the Contract documents. Invoices for work rendered and accepted shall be submitted by Contractor directly to the Capital Projects General Services Department. Approval and payment of such invoices shall be the responsibility of Capital Projects General Services Department or designee. Once a payment request has been received by the Owner, the Owner will process such payment request. If there are any objections or problems with the payment request, the Owner will notify the Contractor of such matters. If the payment request is approved and accepted by the Owner, payment will be made by the Owner to the Contractor not more than 30 days after such request has been approved.
- C. The services the Contractor may be requested to provide the Owner are those items set forth in Exhibit 2 (Scope of Work) and/or Exhibit 3 (Bid Form), which list of services may be amended by the mutual agreement of the parties. The prices to be paid to the Contractor for such services provided to and accepted by the Owner under the provisions of this Contract shall be the current price(s) as set forth in Exhibit 3 (Bid Form). Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, the price(s) shall include all applicable charges such as pick up, delivery, printing, packaging, shipping, and other charges.

#### **SECTION 6. SALES TAX EXEMPTION.**

The Owner is exempt from payment of State Sales and Use Tax on all tangible personal property purchased or leased for the Owner's use or consumption. The Virginia Sales and Use Tax Certificate of Exemption number is 217-074292-9. The Owner's tax-exempt status shall not inure to the benefit of Vendor. Vendor shall be liable for all applicable local, state and federal taxes that may arise or be due under this Agreement.

#### SECTION 7. FREE ON BOARD, RISK OF LOSS, AND TITLE.

All prices include F.O.B Destination, inside delivery, unless otherwise noted in this Contract. The risk of loss from any casualty, regardless of cause, shall be on the Contractor until the items have been delivered to Owner personnel making the request and accepted by the Owner. The risk of loss shall also be on the Contractor during the return of any items to the Contractor. Title to the items shall pass to the Owner upon receipt and acceptance of such items by the Owner.

#### SECTION 8. INSPECTION.

The Owner shall have a reasonable time after receipt of items / services provided and before payment to inspect all items for conformity to this Contract. If all or some of the items delivered to the Owner do not fully conform to the provisions hereof, the Owner shall have the right to reject and return such nonconforming items, at the sole cost of the Contractor.

#### SECTION 9. WARRANTY OF MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP.

Contractor agrees that all items provided to the Owner will be new, or if an item is refurbished or remanufactured, such item will meet the industry standards for such item and the item shall be clearly labeled as refurbished or remanufactured, and that all such items include such warranties

as may be provided by Virginia law together with any warranties provided by the manufacturer of the item. Contractor shall use reasonable commercial efforts to assist the Owner in processing warranty claims against a manufacturer. Contractor also agrees that the services provided under this Contract shall be completed in a professional, good and workmanlike manner, with the degree of skill and care that is required by like contractors in Virginia. Further, Contractor warrants that such services shall be completed in accordance with the applicable requirements of this Contract and shall be correct and appropriate for the purposes contemplated in this Contract. Contractor agrees that Contractor shall repair or replace, at Contractor's sole expense, and to the satisfaction of the Owner, any items, material, equipment, or part of the item that is found by the Owner to be defective or not in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

#### SECTION 10. PAYMENTS TO OTHERS BY CONTRACTOR.

The Contractor agrees that Contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 2.2-4354 of the Virginia Code regarding Contractor's payment to other entities and the Contractor will take one of the two actions permitted therein within 7 days after receipt of amounts paid to Contractor by the Owner. Contractor further agrees that the Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Owner harmless for any lawful claims resulting from the failure of the Contractor to make prompt payments to all persons supplying the Contractor equipment, labor, tools, or material in connection with the work provided for in the Contract. In the event of such claims, the Owner may, in the Owner's sole discretion, after providing written notice to the Contractor, withhold from any payment request or final payment the unpaid sum of money deemed sufficient to pay all appropriate claims and associated costs in connection with the Contract and make such payment, if the Owner determines it to be appropriate to do so.

#### **SECTION 11. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNITY.**

Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner and its officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, losses, damages, claims, causes of action, suits of any nature, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, resulting from or arising out of Contractor's or its employees, agents, or subcontractors actions, activities, or omissions, negligent or otherwise, on or near Owner's property or arising in any way out of or resulting from any of the work or items to be provided under this Contract, and this includes, without limitation, any fines or penalties, violations of federal, state, or local laws or regulations, personal injury, wrongful death, or property damage claims or suits. Contractor agrees to and shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless all the parties referred to above from any and all demands for fees, claims, suits, actions, causes of action, settlement or judgments based on the alleged or actual infringement or violation of any copyright, trademark, patent, invention, article, arrangement, or other apparatus that may be used in the performance of this Contract.

## SECTION 12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS, AND IMMIGRATION LAW.

Contractor agrees to and will comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations, including, but not limited to all applicable licensing requirements, environmental regulations, and OSHA regulations. Contractor further agrees that Contractor does not and shall not during the performance of its Contract; knowingly employ an unauthorized alien as defined in the Federal Immigration Reform & Control Act of 1986.

#### **SECTION 13. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.**

The relationship between Contractor and the Owner is a contractual relationship. It is not intended in any way to create a legal agency or employment relationship. Contractor shall, at all times, maintain its status as an independent contractor and both parties acknowledge that neither is an agent, partner or employee of the other for any purpose. Contractor shall be responsible for causing all required insurance, workers' compensation (regardless of number of employees) and unemployment insurance to be provided for all of its employees and subcontractors. Contractor will be responsible for all actions of any of its subcontractors, and that they are properly licensed.

#### SECTION 14. REPORTS, RECORDS, AND AUDIT.

Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, electronic data, and other documents relating to this Contract for a period of five (5) years after the end of each fiscal year covered by this Contract. The Owner, its authorized employees, agents, representatives, and/or state auditors shall have full access to and the right to request, examine, copy, and/or audit any such materials during the term of the Contract and such retention period, upon prior written notice to Contractor. This includes the Owner's right to audit and/or examine any of the Contractor's documents and/or data as the Owner deems appropriate to protect the Owner's interests.

#### **SECTION 15. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.**

Contractor and any of its subcontractors involved in this Contract shall maintain the insurance coverages set forth in Exhibit 1 to this Contract and provide the proof of such insurance coverage as called for in Exhibit 1, including workers' compensation coverage regardless of the number of Contractor's employees. Such insurance coverage shall be obtained at the Contractor's sole expense and maintained during the life of the Contract and shall be effective prior to the beginning of any work or other performance by the Contractor under this Contract. Additional insured endorsements, if required, must be received by the Owner within 30 days of the execution of this Contract or as otherwise required by the Owner's Risk Manager.

#### SECTION 16. DEFAULT.

If Contractor fails or refuses to perform any of the terms of this Contract, including poor services, work or materials, the Owner may, by written notice to Contractor, terminate this Contract in whole or in part. In addition to any right to terminate, the Owner may enforce any remedy available at law or in equity in connection with such default, and Contractor shall be liable for any damages to the Owner resulting from Contractor's default. The Owner further reserves the right to immediately obtain such work or services from other entities in the event of Contractor's default.

#### SECTION 17. NONWAIVER.

Contractor agrees that the Owner's waiver or failure to enforce or require performance of any term or condition of this Contract or the Owner's waiver of any particular breach of this Contract by the Contractor extends to that instance only. Such waiver or failure is not and shall not be a waiver of any of the terms or conditions of this Contract or a waiver of any other breaches of the Contract by the Contractor and does not bar the Owner from requiring the Contractor to comply with all the terms and conditions of the Contract and does not bar the Owner from asserting any and all rights and/or remedies it has or might have against the Contractor under this Contract or by law.

#### SECTION 18. FORUM SELECTION AND CHOICE OF LAW.

This Contract shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without application of Virginia's conflict of law provisions. Venue for any litigation, suits, and claims arising from or connected with this Contract shall only be proper in the Roanoke County Circuit Court, or in the Roanoke County General District Court if the amount in controversy is within the jurisdictional limit of such court, and all parties to this Contract voluntarily submit themselves to the jurisdiction and venue of such courts, regardless of the actual location of such parties. The provisions of this Contract shall not be construed in favor of or against either party, but shall be construed according to their fair and customary meaning as if both parties jointly prepared this Contract.

#### **SECTION 19. SEVERABILITY.**

If any provision of this Contract, or the application of any provision hereof to a particular entity or circumstance, shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Contract shall not be affected and all other terms and conditions of this Contract shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

#### **SECTION 20. NONDISCRIMINATION.**

- A. During the performance of this Contract, Contractor agrees as follows:
  - i. Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disability, or any other basis prohibited by state or federal law relating to discrimination in employment, except where there is a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the Contractor. Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
  - ii. Contractor in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of Contractor will state that Contractor is an equal opportunity employer.
  - iii. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting the requirements of this section.
- B. Contractor will include the provisions of the foregoing Section A (i, ii, and iii) in every subcontract or purchase order of over \$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

#### **SECTION 21. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE.**

A. During the performance of this Contract, Contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for Contractor's employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of Contractor that Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses

- in every subcontract or purchase order of over \$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.
- B. For the purposes of this section, "drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a contractor, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of the contract.

#### **SECTION 22.** FAITH BASED ORGANIZATIONS.

Pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-4343.1, be advised that the Owner does not discriminate against faith-based organizations.

#### SECTION 23. DATA ON CONVICTIONS FOR CERTAIN CRIMES

The Vendor certifies that none of the persons who will provide services requiring direct contact with students on school property during school hours or during school-sponsored activities has been convicted of any of the following felony or misdemeanor offenses: felony sex or violence offenses, other felony offenses or misdemeanor sex offenses within the past ten years. Upon request by the Schools, Vendor shall provide specific documentation to verify that it has conducted requisite criminal conviction checks on its employees, agents, sub-contractors, and assigns. Schools reserve the right to remove or deny entrance to any employee, agent, sub-contractor, or assign of Vendor when School determines, in its sole discretion, that such person poses a risk to health or safety of others on School property.

The Consultant further understands and acknowledges (1) that if he makes a materially false statement regarding any of the above offenses, he will be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor and may forfeit profits derived from the contract. Further, the Consultant understands and acknowledges that before any person is permitted to provide such services subsequent to this certification, he must complete a new certification regarding such person in a form satisfactory to the Owner. Data and Convictions information will be requested before the Owner enters into a contract / when required.

#### SECTION 24. ASSIGNMENT.

Contractor may not assign or transfer this Contract in whole or in part except with the prior written consent of the Owner, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. If consent to assign is given, no such assignment shall in any way release or relieve the Contractor from any of the covenants or undertakings contained in this Contract and the Contractor shall remain liable for the Contract during the entire term thereof.

#### SECTION 25. CONTRACTUAL DISPUTES.

Contractual claims, whether for money or for other relief, including any disputes as to change orders or extra work, shall be submitted, in writing, no later than sixty (60) calendar days after final payment or payment designated as a final payment; however, written notice of the Contractor's intention to file such claim must be given at the time of the occurrence or beginning of the work upon which the claim is based. Such notice is a condition precedent to the assertion of any such claim by the Contractor. A written decision upon any such claims will be made by the

Owner or designee within thirty (30) calendar days after submittal of the claim and any practically available additional supporting evidence required by the Owner. The Contractor may not institute legal action prior to receipt of the Owner's decision on the claim unless the Owner fails to render such decision within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from submittal of its claim. The decision of the Owner shall be final and conclusive unless the Contractor within six (6) months of the date of the final decision on a claim or from expiration of the 120 day time limit, whichever occurs first, initiates legal action as provided in Section 2.2 -4364, of the Code of Virginia. Failure of the Owner to render a decision within said one hundred twenty (120) calendar days shall not result in the Contractor being awarded the relief claimed nor shall it result in any other relief or penalty. The sole result of the Owner's failure to render a decision within said one hundred twenty (120) calendar days shall be Contractor's right to immediately institute legal action. No administrative appeals procedure pursuant to Section 2.2 -4365, of the Code of Virginia, has been established for contractual claims under this Contract.

#### SECTION 26. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

The terms, conditions, provisions, and undertakings of this Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

#### **SECTION 27. HEADINGS.**

The captions and headings in this Contract are for convenience and reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning and interpretation of this Contract.

#### SECTION 28. COUNTERPART COPIES.

This Contract may be executed in any number of counterpart copies, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute a single instrument.

#### **SECTION 29. AUTHORITY TO SIGN.**

The persons who have executed this Contract represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to execute this Contract on behalf of the party for whom they are signing.

#### **SECTION 30. NOTICES.**

All notices must be given in writing and shall be validly given if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight courier, with a receipt, addressed as follows (or any other address that the party to be notified may have designated to the sender by like notice):

To County: Capital Projects

Attn: George Assaid 5204 Bernard Drive Roanoke, VA 24018

@roanokecountyva.gov

Copy to: County of Roanoke

Purchasing Division Attn: Kate Hoyt

5204 Bernard Drive, SW, Suite 300-F

	Roanoke, Virginia 24018-2020 <u>KHoyt@roanokecountyva.gov</u>	
If to Contractor:	Attn:, Title	
Email Address: Phone:		

Notices shall be deemed to be effective one day after sending if sent by overnight courier or three (3) days after sending it by certified mail, return receipt requested.

#### SECTION 31. PROTECTING PERSONS AND PROPERTY.

The Contractor expressly undertakes both directly and through its subcontractors, to take every reasonable precaution at all times for the protection of all persons and property at the location of the Work or in the vicinity of the Work or that may be affected by the Contractor's operation in connection with the Work. The Contractor will maintain adequate protection of all Contractor's Work to prevent damage to it and shall protect the Owner's property from any injury or loss arising in connection with this Contract and to protect adjacent property to prevent any damage to it or loss of use and enjoyment by its owners. Contractor agrees to be responsible for the entire Work and will be liable for all damages to the Work, including, but not limited to, damages to any property of the Owner or to any property in the vicinity or adjacent to the Work. All damage with respect to the Work caused by vandalism, weather, or any other cause, other than resulting from the sole negligence of the Owner shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. Contractor shall also be responsible for any inventory shortages and discrepancies of any type.

#### SECTION 32. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO FUNDING.

This Contract is subject to funding and/or appropriations from federal, state, and/or local governments and/or agencies. If any such funding is not provided, withdrawn, or otherwise not made available for this Contract, the Contractor agrees that the Owner may terminate this Contract on seven (7) days written notice to Contractor, without any penalty or damages being incurred by the Owner. Contractor further agrees to comply with any applicable requirements of any grants and/or agreements providing such funding.

#### SECTION 33. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF CONTRACT BY OWNER.

The Owner, at any time, may order Contractor to immediately stop work on this Contract, and/or by seven days (7) written notice may terminate this Contract, with or without cause, in whole or in part, at any time. Upon receipt of such notice, the Contractor shall immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and deliver to the Owner all data (including electronic data), drawings, specifications, reports, project deliverables, estimates, summaries, and such other information and materials as may have been accumulated by the Contractor in performing this Contract whether completed or in process (unless otherwise directed by the notice).

1. If the termination or stop work order is due to the failure of the Contractor to fulfill any of its Contract obligations, the Owner may take over the Work and prosecute

the same to completion by contract or otherwise. In such case, the Contractor shall be liable to the Owner for any damages allowed by law, and upon demand of Owner shall promptly pay the same to Owner.

- 2. Should the Contract be terminated or work is stopped not due in any way to the fault of the Contractor, the Contractor shall only be entitled to compensation for services actually performed and materials actually supplied prior to notice of termination or to stop work and which are approved by the Owner and any applicable federal or state approving agency. No profit, overhead, or any other costs of any type are allowed after the date of such notice of termination or stop work order.
- 3. The rights and remedies of the Owner provided in this Section are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract and Owner may pursue any and all such rights and remedies against Contractor as it deems appropriate.

#### SECTION 34. ETHICS IN PUBLIC CONTRACTING.

The provisions, requirements, and prohibitions as contained in Sections 2.2–4367 through 2.2-4377, of the <u>Va. Code</u>, pertaining to bidders, offerors, contractors, and subcontractors are applicable to this Contract.

# SECTION 35. COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW; FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC BUSINESSES AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA.

Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Virginia Code Section 2.2-4311.2, as amended, which provides that a contractor organized as a stock or nonstock corporation, limited liability company, business trust, or limited partnership or registered as a registered limited liability partnership shall be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a domestic or foreign business entity if so required by Title 13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law. Contractor shall not allow its existence to lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact business in the Commonwealth, if so required under Title 13.1 or Title 50, to be revoked or cancelled at any time during the term of the Contract. The Owner may void the Contract if the Contractor fails to remain in compliance with the provisions of this section.

#### SECTION 36. OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS.

Contractor agrees that all reports and any other documents (including electronic data) prepared for, obtained in connection with, and/or required to be produced in connection with this Contract shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Owner and all such items shall become the sole property of the Owner. The Contractor agrees that the Owner shall own all rights of any type in and to all such items, including but not limited to copyrights and trademarks, and the Owner may reproduce, copy, and use all such items as the Owner deems appropriate, without any restriction or limitation on their use and without any cost or charges to the Owner from Contractor. Contractor hereby transfers and assigns all such rights and items to the Owner. Contractor further agrees Contractor will take any action and execute any documents necessary to accomplish the provisions of this Section. The Contractor also warrants that Contractor has good title to all materials, equipment,

documents, and supplies which it uses in the Work or for which it accepts payment in whole or in part.

#### **SECTION 37. DEFINITIONS.**

Whenever used in these General Conditions or in the Contract Documents, the following terms have the meanings indicated, which are applicable to both the singular and plural and the male and female gender thereof, and where applicable to any other legal entity such as a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, etc.

The section and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only.

Architect, Engineer, Architect/Engineer or A/E: The term used to designate the Architect and/or the Engineer who contracts with the Owner to provide the Architectural and Engineering services for the project. The Architect/Engineer is a separate Contractor and is referred to herein as the Architect/Engineer or abbreviated as A/E. The term includes any associates or consultants employed by the firm to assist in providing the A/E services

<u>Bidder:</u> The person, firm, corporation, or other entity interested in submitting a bid for the Work to be performed.

<u>Change Order:</u> A document issued by Owner on or after the effective date of the Contract which is agreed to by the Contractor and approved by the Owner, and which authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, including any adjustment in the Contract Price and/or the Contract Time.

<u>Owner:</u> The the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors, (Includes any Agency that is represented by the Owner and sometimes also referred to as Buyer) or its authorized representative.

**County Code:** Refers to the Code of the County of Roanoke, as amended.

**Owner Designee:** The Owner's authorized representative.

**Board of Supervisors:** The County Board of Supervisors or authorized representative. **Code of Virginia:** Refers to the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. (Sometimes referred to as Va. Code or Virginia Code.)

<u>Contract Documents</u>: These documents include, but are not limited to, the Project Manual, Invitation to Bid, the Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Form, the Contract, the Bonds or other Bid Security, the Escrow Agreement, the General Conditions, Supplementary General Conditions, Special Conditions, the Specifications, Addenda or Change Orders, the Plans and Drawings, any Supplemental Drawings, and any additional documents incorporated by reference in the above.

<u>Contract:</u> The written agreement between the parties concerning the performance of the Work and consisting of the Contract Documents.

<u>Contractor:</u> The person, firm, corporation, or other entity entering into a contractual agreement with the Owner to perform the Work.

**Defect, Defective, or Deficient:** An adjective or noun which when modifying or referring to the word Work refers to Work or any part thereof that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet the requirements of any inspections, standards, tests, or approvals referred to in the Contract Documents. **Document(s):** This term includes, but is not limited to: writings, drawings, items on which words, symbols, or marks are recorded; electronic data of any type; videotapes, recordings, photographs and negatives, digital or otherwise; and any other form of data,

writing, or information compilation, however recorded or stored, and regardless of physical form or characteristics.

<u>Final Acceptance</u>: The Owner's acceptance of the project from the Contractor upon confirmation from Owner and the Contractor that the project is apparently complete in accordance with the Contract requirements.

<u>Notice:</u> All written notices, demands, instructions, claims, approvals, and disapprovals required to obtain compliance with the Contract requirements. Any written notice by either party to the Contract shall be sufficiently given if delivered to or at the last known business address of the person, firm, or corporation constituting the party to the Contract, or to his, her, their, or its authorized agent, representative, or officer.

<u>Notice to Proceed:</u> A written notice given by the Owner at the Owner's discretion to the Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract time will commence for the Contractor to begin the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

<u>Project Inspector:</u> One or more individuals employed by the Owner to inspect the Work and/or to act as Resident Inspector to the extent required by the Owner. The Owner shall notify the Contractor of the appointment of such Project Inspector(s).

**Provide:** Shall mean to furnish and install ready for its intended use.

<u>Subcontractor</u>: A person, firm, partnership, corporation, or other entity having a direct contract with the Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of the Work. It includes one who provides on-site labor, but does not include one who only furnishes or supplies material for the project.

<u>Submittals:</u> All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, brochures, schedules, samples, electronic data and other data required by the Contract Documents which are specifically prepared by or for the Contractor, Subcontractor, or Supplier, and submitted by the Contractor to illustrate the material, equipment, or layouts, or some other portion of the Work.

<u>Substantial Completion:</u> The date certified by Owner when construction is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for the purposes for which it is intended. **Successful Bidder:** The bidder to whom the Owner makes an award.

<u>Supplier:</u> A manufacturer, fabricator, distributor, material man, or vendor who provides only material or supplies for the project, but does not provide on-site labor.

<u>Work or Project:</u> The entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof as required by the Contract Documents. Work is the result of performing services, furnishing labor, and furnishing and incorporating material and equipment into the construction.

#### **SECTION 38. INDEMNITY PROVISION.**

A. **Indemnity:** Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and its officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, losses, damages, claims, causes of action, suits of any nature, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, resulting from or arising out of Contractor's or its employees', agents', or subcontractors' actions, activities, or omissions, negligent or otherwise, on or near Owner's property or easement, or arising in any way out of or resulting from any of the work to be provided under this Contract. This provision includes, without limitation, any fines or penalties, violations of federal, state, or local laws or regulations, personal injury, wrongful death, or property

- damage claims or suits, breach of contract claims, indemnity claims, and any other damages, losses, and/or claims of any type.
- B. Hazardous Material: While on Owner's property or easement and in its performance of this Contract, Contractor shall not transport, dispose of or release any hazardous substance, material, or waste, except as necessary in performance of its Work under this Contract and in any event Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances controlling air, water, noise, solid wastes, and other pollution, and relating to the storage, transport, release, or disposal of hazardous material, substances or waste. Regardless of Owner's acquiescence, Contractor shall indemnify and hold Owner, its officers, agents, and employees harmless from all costs, claims, damages, causes of action, liabilities, fines or penalties, including reasonable attorney's fees, resulting from Contractor's violation of this paragraph and agrees to reimburse Owner for all costs and expenses incurred by Owner in eliminating or remedying such violations. Contractor also agrees to reimburse Owner and hold Owner, its officers, agents, and employees harmless from any and all costs, expenses, attorney's fees and all penalties or civil judgments obtained against the Owner as a result of Contractor's use or release of any hazardous substance or waste onto the ground, or into the water or air from or upon Owner's premises.
- C. **Patents:** The Contractor shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless the Owner, its officers, agents and employees from any and all demands for fees, claims, suits, actions, causes of action, or judgments based on the alleged infringement or violation of any patent, invention, article, trademark, arrangement, or other apparatus that may be used in the performance of the Contract or the Work.

#### SECTION 39. EMPLOYMENT AND CONDUCT OF PERSONNEL.

- A. **Employee Qualifications:** Only skilled and reliable workers shall be employed for the Work. Should any person employed on the Work by the Contractor appear to Owner to be incompetent, unable to perform the Work, or disorderly, such person shall be removed from the Work immediately upon proper notice to the Contractor from Owner and such person shall not again be used for this Contract.
- B. **Superintendence:** The Contractor shall have a competent foreman or superintendent, subject to Owner's approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, on the jobsite at all times during the progress of the Work. The Contractor shall notify the Owner, in writing, of any proposed change in the foreman or superintendent including the reason therefore prior to making such change.
- C. **Drug-free Workplace:** During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for the Contractor's employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on

behalf of the Contractor that the Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order over \$5,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

a. For the purpose of this section, "drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a Contractor, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of the Contract.

The Contractor shall post a copy of the policy in a conspicuous place at the jobsite and assure that all Contractor, subcontractor, and supplier personnel entering the jobsite are informed of the policy.

#### **SECTION 40. SUBCONTRACTORS.**

- A. Licensure: The Contractor shall comply with Title 54.1, Chapter 11, of the Code of Virginia, with respect to licensure of itself and all subcontractors employed to work on the project. The Contractor represents that it has verified that all subcontractors hold all required state and local licenses, including State Contractor's license and County business license. The Contractor shall verify that any additional subcontractors employed to work on the project, subsequent to the initial verification, hold all required state and local licenses, including State Contractor's license and County business license. The Contractor is required to submit the Contractor's Certification as to Licensure of Subcontractors Form to Owner. This constitutes a material part of the Contractor's Contract with the Owner.
- B. Change of Subcontractors: Subcontractors shall not be changed without the written approval of Owner.
- C. **Responsibility for Subcontractors:** The Contractor shall not employ for the project any subcontractor that the Owner may, within a reasonable time, object to as unsuitable. The Contractor further agrees that it is as fully responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors, suppliers, and invitees on the jobsite and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them, as the Contractor is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by it.

#### SECTION 41. CONDITIONS AT SITE.

- A. **Existing Conditions:** The Contractor shall have visited the site prior to bidding and is responsible for having ascertained pertinent local conditions such as location, accessibility, and general character of the site, and the character and extent of existing improvements and work within or adjacent to the site. Claims as a result of failure to have done so will not be considered by the Owner and will be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.
- B. **Hidden Conditions:** If, in the performance of the Contract, hidden physical conditions of a building being modified are exposed revealing unusual or materially different conditions than those ordinarily encountered or inherent in work of this nature, or if

subsurface or latent conditions at the site are found which are materially different from those frequently present in the locality, from those indicated in the Contract Documents, or from those inherent in work of the character required by the Contract, the Contractor must report such conditions to Owner before the conditions are disturbed. Upon such notice, or upon his own observation of such conditions, Owner will make such changes in the Contract Documents as he finds necessary to conform to the different conditions. Any change in the cost of the Work or the time needed for completion must be requested pursuant to Section 19 of these General Conditions.

C. **Suspected Hazardous Material:** If the Contractor, during the course of the project, observes the existence of any material which it suspects or knows to be hazardous to human health or the environment, the Contractor shall promptly notify Owner. Owner will provide the Contractor with instructions regarding the situation. The Contractor shall not perform any work involving the material or any work causing the material to be less accessible prior to receipt of special instructions from Owner.

#### **SECTION 42. SURVEYS AND LAYOUT.**

- A. **Surveying Services:** All necessary drawings showing the location of property lines, buildings, and other appropriate information shall be furnished to the Contractor through the drawings and specifications. The Contractor shall provide competent surveying and engineering services to verify the given information and to execute the Work in accordance with the Contract requirements and shall be responsible for the accuracy of Contractor's surveying and engineering services. The Contractor shall immediately notify Owner of any discrepancies and confirm such notice in writing within five (5) calendar days.
- B. **Survey Control:** Such general reference points and bench marks on the building site as will enable the Contractor to proceed with the Work will be established in the drawings and specifications. If the Contractor finds that any previously established reference points have been lost or destroyed, Contractor shall promptly notify Owner.
- C. **Damage to Survey Control:** The Contractor shall protect and preserve the established bench marks and monuments and shall make no changes in locations without written notice to and approval from Owner. Any of these which may be lost or destroyed or which require shifting because of necessary changes in grades or locations shall, subject to prior approval from Owner, be replaced and accurately located by the Contractor.

#### SECTION 43. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

A. **Drawings and Specifications:** The general character and scope of the Work are illustrated by the drawings and specifications. Where on any of the drawings a portion of the Work is drawn out and the remainder is indicated in outline, the parts drawn out shall apply also to all other like portions of the Work. If the Contractor deems additional detail or information to be necessary, Contractor may request the same in writing from Owner. The Contractor shall carry out the Work in accordance with the drawings and specifications and any additional detail drawings and instructions as issued by Owner. However, Contractor shall immediately notify Owner of any discrepancies in such

- drawings and/or specifications and confirm such notice in writing within five (5) calendar days.
- B. **Discrepancies in Drawings:** In case of difference between small and large scale drawings, the large scale drawings shall govern, unless otherwise directed in writing by Owner.
- C. "Similar": Where the word "similar" appears on the drawings, it shall be interpreted in its general sense and not as meaning identical, and all details shall be worked out in relation to their location and their connection with other parts of the Work.
- D. **Division of Specifications:** The specifications are divided into several parts for convenience only, since the entire specifications must be considered as a whole. The divisions of the specifications are not intended to control the Contractor in dividing the work among subcontractors or to limit the work performed by any trade. The Contractor shall be responsible for the coordination of the trades, subcontractors, and vendors engaged upon this Work.
- E. **Dimension Accuracy:** Measurements or dimensions shown on the drawings for site features, utilities, and structures shall be verified at the site by the Contractor. The location of underground utilities indicated on the plans is diagrammatic, plotted from available records and field survey information, and shall be considered approximate only, and the Owner makes no representations with regard to their accuracy. The Contractor shall not scale measurements or dimensions from the drawings. Where there are discrepancies, Owner shall be consulted. Where new work is to connect to, match with, or be provided for existing work, the Contractor shall verify the actual existing conditions and related dimensions prior to ordering or fabrication, so that such new work will properly fit with existing work.
- F. **As-Built Drawings:** The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of all drawings, specifications, addenda, approved shop or setting drawings, change orders, field deviations, and other documents or modifications (referred to herein as "As-Built Drawings") in good order and marked to record all changes as they occur during construction. These shall be available to Owner, the Project Inspector, and the Owner's testing personnel. These "As-Built Drawings" shall be neatly and clearly marked in color during construction to record all variations from the drawings made during construction. The representation of such variations shall include such supplementary notes, symbols, legends, documents, and details as may be necessary to clearly show the as-built construction.
- G. **Record Drawings:** Upon completion of the Work and prior to Final Acceptance, the Contractor shall deliver to Owner, for preparation of the Record Drawings, one complete set of "As-Built Drawings" and documents referred to in Section 10.6.

#### SECTION 44. SCHEDULE OF THE WORK.

- A. **Scheduling:** The Contractor is responsible for the sequencing, scheduling, and coordinating of the Work, for monitoring the progress of the Work, and for taking appropriate action to keep the Work on schedule. The Contractor is responsible for coordinating Contractor's work on the Project with any other work being carried on by the Owner or by other Owner consultants or contractors at the site or for the Project. The Contractor shall prepare and submit to Owner a schedule for accomplishing the Work based upon the completion time stated in the Contract and submit such to Owner at the pre-construction conference. No progress payments will be made to the Contractor until after Contractor has submitted a schedule which is acceptable to Owner. All schedules under Section 11 shall be in both paper and electronic form unless otherwise directed by Owner.
- B. **Progress:** The Contractor shall review the progress of the Work not less than each month, but as often as necessary to properly manage the project and stay on schedule. The Contractor shall collect and preserve information on Change Orders, including extensions of time. The Contractor shall evaluate this information and update the schedule monthly to finish within the contractually allowed time. The Contractor shall submit the updated schedule with each progress payment request. The scheduled completion date shall be within the period of time allowed by the Contract for completion of construction, except as amended by any Change Orders.
- C. **Delay and Recovery Schedule:** Should there be any delay; Owner may require the Contractor to prepare, at no extra cost to the Owner, a plan of action and a recovery schedule for completing the Work by the contractual completion date.
  - i. The plan of action and recovery schedule shall set forth how the Contractor intends to comply with the original schedule. The plan of action and recovery schedule, when required, shall be submitted and approved by Owner prior to Contractor's submission of the next monthly construction estimate. The Owner may withhold progress payments until such schedule is submitted and approved.

#### SECTION 45. CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISION.

The Contractor shall be solely responsible to supervise and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction. The Contractor is solely responsible to the Owner that the finished Work complies with the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for health and safety precautions and programs for its workers, and subcontractors, agents and assigns with the Work. No inspection by, knowledge on the part of, or acquiescence by the Owner, or any other entity whatever shall relieve the Contractor from its sole responsibility for compliance with the requirements of the Contract or responsibility for health and safety programs and precautions.

### SECTION 46. STANDARDS FOR MATERIAL INSTALLATION AND WORKMANSHIP.

- A. Material and Equipment: Unless otherwise specifically provided in this Contract, all equipment, material, and accessories incorporated in the Work are to be new and in first class condition. The Contractor shall furnish to Owner for approval the name of the manufacturer, the model number, and other identifying data and information respecting the performance, capacity, nature, and rating of the machinery and mechanical and other equipment which the Contractor contemplates incorporating in the Work. Machinery, equipment, material, and articles installed or used without required approval may be subject to subsequent rejection by the Owner.
- **B. Hazardous Substances:** Unless specifically approved by the Owner or required by the specifications, the Contractor shall not incorporate any material into the Work that contains asbestos or any material known by the Contractor to contain a substance known to be hazardous to health when the building and/or site is occupied by the Owner. If the Contractor becomes aware that a material required by the specifications contains asbestos or other hazardous substances, it shall notify the Owner immediately and shall take no further steps to acquire or install any such material without first obtaining Owner approval. (See also Sections 2.2 and 8.3 of these General Conditions.)
- C. **Workmanship:** The workmanship shall be of the highest quality found in the building industry in every respect. All items of Work shall be done by workers skilled in the particular task to which they are assigned. In the acceptance or rejection of work, no allowance will be made for lack of skill on the part of workers. Poor or inferior workmanship (as determined by Owner, or other inspecting authorities) shall be removed and replaced to conform to the highest quality standards of the trades concerned, or otherwise corrected to the satisfaction of the Owner, or other inspecting authority, at the Contractor's sole expense.
- D. **Instructions for Installation:** Under the various sections of the specifications, where specified items are supplied with the manufacturer's printed instructions, recommendations, or directions for installation, or where such instructions, recommendations, or directions are available, installation of the specified items shall be in strict accordance with the manufacturer's printed instructions unless those instructions contradict the drawings or specifications, in which case Owner will be notified by Contractor for an interpretation and decision.
- E. Installation Procedures Without Instructions: Where neither the manufacturer's printed instructions are available for installation of specific items, nor are specific code or standards given by reference to govern the installation of specific items; and where there is doubt concerning the installation procedures to be followed or the quality of workmanship to be maintained in the installation of specific items, the Contractor shall consult Owner for approval of the installation procedures Contractor proposes to follow or the specific standards governing the quality of workmanship Contractor proposes to maintain during the installation of the items in question.

F. Codes and Standards: Under the various sections of the specifications, where reference is made to specific codes or standards governing the installation of specified items, installation shall in all cases be in strict accordance with the referenced codes and standards. Where no reference is made to specific codes or standards, installation shall conform to the generally recognized applicable standards for first-class installation of the specific item to be installed. Contractors are expected to be proficient and skilled in their respective trades and knowledgeable of the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), the current edition of the Virginia Uniform Statewide Building Code (USBC) and its referenced technical codes and standards, Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and other codes and standards applicable to installations and associated work by its trade and/or that are applicable to the Work.

#### **SECTION 47. SUBMITTALS.**

- A. **General:** The Contractor shall submit for the approval of Owner all documents and/or materials required by the solicitation or requested by Owner. All such submissions shall be made with such promptness as to cause no delay in this or any other part of the project, and to allow reasonable time for checking, correcting, resubmitting, and recorrecting. No part of the Work dealt with by a submittal shall be fabricated by the Contractor, save at Contractor's own risk, until such approval has been given. The Contractor shall maintain one (1) set of approved submittals at the jobsite at all times.
- B. **Format:** Submissions shall be made in such number of copies that two (2) approved copies may be retained by Owner. Each submission shall be accompanied by a letter of transmittal listing the contents of the submission and identifying each item by reference to specification section or drawings. All submittals shall be clearly labeled with the name of the project and other necessary information. Catalog plates and other similar material that cannot be so labeled conveniently, shall be bound in suitable covers bearing the identifying data.
- C. **Supporting Material:** Submissions shall be accompanied by all required certifications and other such supporting material and documents, and shall be submitted in such sequence or in such groups that all related items may be checked together. When submittals cannot be checked because the submission is not complete, or because submittals on related items have not been received, then such submittals will be returned without action or will be held, not checked, until the material which was lacking is received.
- D. Coordination: Contractor shall review and coordinate with all other related or affected work before they are submitted for approval, and shall bear the Contractor's certification that it has checked and approved them as complying with the information given in the Contract Documents. Submittals made without such certification and coordination will be returned to the Contractor without action, and will not be considered a formal submission. The Contractor shall be responsible for checking all dimensions and coordinating all material and trades to ensure that the material proposed will fit in the space available and be compatible with other material provided.

- E. **Variations:** If the submissions show variations from the Contract Documents because of standard shop practice or other reasons, the Contractor shall make specific mention of such variation in Contractor's letter of transmittal so that, if acceptable, suitable action may be taken for proper adjustment; otherwise the Contractor will not be relieved of the responsibility for executing the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents even though such submittals have been approved.
- F. "Or Equal": The drawings and/or specifications may indicate that Owner designed or detailed a portion of the plans around a particular product (most commonly a piece of equipment). Should a different product be proposed by the Contractor and accepted, all modifications, rerouting, relocations, and variations required for proper installation and coordination to comply with the design concept and requirements of the Contract Documents shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor and shall be made at no extra cost to the Owner. This naming of a particular product, around which the plans were designed or detailed, is not intended to preclude the use of other products or favor the product named when a "brand name or equal" specification has been used. (See also Section 10 of Instructions to Bidders.) Rather it is only intended to acknowledge the reality that in many instances Owner must design around the dimensions and characteristics of a particular product.
- G. Review by Owner: Owner will review and respond to the submittals within a reasonable time. Checking and/or approval of submittals will be for general conformance with the design concept of the project and compliance with the information given in the Contract Documents, and will not include verification of quantities, detailed dimensions, nor adjustments of dimensions to actual field conditions. Approval shall not be construed as permitting any departure from Contract requirements, authorizing any increase in price or time for completion or relieving the Contractor of the responsibility for any error in details, dimensions, or otherwise that may exist.
- H. The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals.

#### SECTION 48. INSPECTION AND INDEPENDENT TESTING.

A. Inspection and Testing: All material and workmanship shall be subject to inspection, examination, and testing by Owner at any and all times during manufacture and/or construction. Owner shall have authority to reject defective material and workmanship and require its correction. Rejected workmanship shall be corrected to the satisfaction of the Owner, and rejected material shall be replaced with proper material that is satisfactory to the Owner, without charge therefore, and the Contractor shall promptly segregate and remove the rejected material from the premises. If the Contractor fails to proceed at once with replacement of rejected material and/or the correction of defective workmanship, the Owner may, by contract or otherwise, replace such material and/or correct such workmanship and charge the cost to the Contractor, and/or may terminate the right of the Contractor to proceed as provided in Sections 26 or 27 of these General Conditions, the Contractor and surety being liable for any damage to the same extent as provided for in those Sections.

#### B. Payment for Inspection, Testing, and Certification:

- i. Jobsite inspections, tests conducted on site, or tests of material gathered on site which the Contract requires to be performed by independent testing entities shall be contracted and paid for by the Owner. The Contractor shall promptly furnish, without additional charge, all reasonable facilities, labor, and material necessary for making such tests. Except as provided in Section 15.3 below, whenever such examination and testing finds defective material, equipment, or workmanship, the Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the cost of reexamination and retesting.
- ii. Although conducted by independent testing entities, the Owner will not contract and pay for tests or certifications of material, manufactured products or assemblies which the Contract, codes, standards, etc. require to be tested and/or certified for compliance with industry standards by entities such as Underwriters Laboratories, Factory Mutual or ASTM. If there are any fees to be paid for such tests and certifications, they shall be paid by the Contractor.
- iii. The Contractor shall also pay for all inspections, tests, and certifications which the Contract specifically requires it to perform or pay, together with any inspections and tests which it chooses to perform for its own quality control purposes.
- C. Examination of Completed Work: Should it be considered necessary or advisable by Owner at any time before final acceptance of the entire Work to examine any part of the Work already completed, by removing or tearing out portions of the Work, the Contractor shall on request promptly furnish all necessary facilities, labor, and material to expose the Work to be tested to the extent required. If such Work is found to be defective in any respect, due to the fault of the Contractor or its Subcontractors, Contractor shall pay for all the expenses of uncovering the Work, of examination and testing, and of satisfactory reconstruction. If, however, such Work is found to meet the requirements of the Contract, the actual cost of the Contractor's labor and material necessarily involved in uncovering the Work, the cost of examination and testing and Contractor's cost of material and labor necessary for replacement shall be paid to the Contractor and it shall, in addition, if completion of the Work has been delayed thereby, be granted a suitable extension of time.
- D. **Suspension of Work:** The Owner may suspend the Work when in its judgment the drawings and specifications are not being followed. Any such suspension shall be issued in writing and continued only until the matter in question is resolved to the satisfaction of the Owner. The cost of any such Work stoppage shall be borne by the Contractor unless it is later determined that no fault existed in the Contractor's Work.
- E. **Project Inspector:** Failure of the Project Inspector to note or require correction of improper or defective work does not relieve the Contractor from its responsibility to correct such improper or defective work. The Project Inspector has no authority to and shall not:
  - i. Enter into the area of responsibility of the Contractor's superintendent;

- ii. Issue directions relative to any aspect of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or in regard to safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work;
- iii. Authorize or suggest that the Owner occupy the project, in whole or in part; or
- iv. Issue a certificate for payment.

#### SECTION 49. USE OF PREMISES AND REMOVAL OF DEBRIS

- **Jobsite Coordination:** The Contractor shall perform the Contract in such a manner as not to interrupt or interfere with the operation of any existing activity on the premises or with the work of any other contractor.
- **Storage of Material:** The Contractor shall store apparatus, material, supplies, and equipment in such orderly fashion at the site of the Work as will not unduly interfere with the progress of its Work or the work of any other contractor.
- Jobsite Appearance: The Contractor expressly undertakes, either directly or through its Subcontractor(s), to clean up frequently all refuse, rubbish, scrap material, and debris caused by his operations, to the end that at all times the jobsite shall present a neat, orderly, and workmanlike appearance. No such refuse, rubbish, scrap material, and debris shall be left within the completed Work nor buried on the building site, but shall be properly protected and removed from the site and properly disposed of in a licensed landfill or otherwise as required by law.
- Final Cleaning: The Contractor expressly undertakes, either directly or through its Subcontractor(s), before final payment, to remove all surplus material, false work, temporary structures, including foundations thereof, and debris of every nature resulting from its operations and to put the site in a neat, orderly condition, to thoroughly clean and leave reasonably dust free all finished surfaces including all equipment, piping, etc., on the interior of all buildings included in the Contract; and to thoroughly clean all glass installed under the Contract including the removal of all paint and mortar splatter and other defacements. If a Contractor fails to clean up at the completion of the Work, the Owner may do so and charge for costs thereof to the Contractor in accordance with these General Conditions.
- **Erosion Control:** During and at completion of the Work, the Contractor shall prevent site soil erosion, the runoff of silt and/or debris carried by water from the site, and the blowing of dust or debris off the site in accordance with the applicable requirements and standards of the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Handbook, latest edition, and of the Contract Documents.

#### SECTION 50. DAMAGES TO THE WORK AREA

- A. **Damage to the Work:** The Contractor shall have charge of and be solely responsible for the entire Work and be liable for all damages to the Work including, but not limited to any of the damages hereafter mentioned, and to any property in the vicinity of the Work, until its completion and acceptance by Owner.
  - i. Where the work involves alterations, renovations, or modifications to any existing building, the Contractor shall familiarize itself with the structural condition of such building before proceeding with any work. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to take all necessary safeguards to protect and maintain all parts of

- the building in a safe condition at all times during the process of construction and to protect from damage those portions of the building that are to remain.
- ii. Under no condition shall any load be placed on any part of a building, whether new or existing, in excess of the load the structure will safely support, and no structural member(s) shall be cut or altered without the written consent of Owner.
- iii. The Contractor shall conduct all operations in such a manner as to avoid damage to existing work and surfaces within any existing building that are to remain. Any and all damaged work and surfaces shall be repaired, replaced, or restored to their original condition at the time when this work was started, and the expense of such work shall be borne by the Contractor.
- B. **Damage to Utilities:** The respective Utility Company shall be given a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours' notice prior to any adjustment of utilities, and the Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Virginia Underground Utilities Damage Prevention Act, Section 56-265.14 et seq., of the Code of Virginia.
  - a. Damages that may occur to the utilities during the Work shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.
- C. **Relocation of Utilities:** Should any utilities require adjustment during the Work, it shall be the Contractor's responsibility to have such utilities relocated as a part of the Work and to contact and cooperate with the respective Utility Company in performance of such operations.
- D. **Damage to Other Work and Existing Structures:** The Contractor shall take into account all other work which shall be done by other parties on the jobsite, either now known or which may become necessary during the progress of the Work, and shall be responsible for any damage done to the other work. Damage to concrete curbs, gutters, sidewalks, or any existing facility that may occur during the construction shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor, at its sole expense, as directed by and to the satisfaction of Owner.
- E. **Weather Damage:** Damage with respect to the Work caused by the weather shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.
- F. **Blasting:** Any damage that may occur due to blasting shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.

#### SECTION 51. CHANGES IN THE WORK

A. Changes in Drawings and Specifications: The Owner reserves the right to make such changes in the drawings and specifications and in the character of the Work as may be necessary or desirable to ensure completion in the most satisfactory manner, provided such changes do not materially alter the original plans and specifications or change the general nature of the Work as a whole. Such changes shall not be considered as waiving or invalidating any condition or provision of the Contract and Bonds. Such changes shall be issued in writing, by Owner to Contractor.

- B. Changes in Quantities: The Owner reserves the right to make changes in the quantities of the Work, as may be considered necessary or desirable and such changes shall not be considered as waiving or invalidating any conditions or provisions of the Contract or Bonds. The Contractor shall perform the Work as altered, whether increased or decreased, and no allowances shall be made for anticipated profits. Payment to the Contractor for the changes in the quantities of work shall be made only for the actual quantities of work performed and material furnished at the unit prices set forth in the Contract, except as provided below.
  - i. When the quantity of work to be done or of material to be furnished under any item of the Contract is more than 125 percent of the quantity stated in the Contract, either party to the Contract, upon demand, shall be entitled to negotiate for revised consideration on the portion of work above 125 percent of the quantity stated in the Contract.
  - ii. When the quantity of work to be done or of material to be furnished under any item of the Contract is less than 75 percent of the quantity stated in the Contract, then either party to the Contract, upon demand, shall be entitled to negotiate for revised consideration on the Work performed.
  - iii. Any consideration after that as set forth above shall be paid for as is hereinafter provided under Section 19.7. The foregoing notwithstanding, the quantity of work to be done or of material to be furnished under any item of the Contract, or the total original Contract shall not be increased more than 25 percent or reduced by more than 25 percent without the written consent of the Contractor and Owner.
- C. Changes in the Work: No change with respect to the Work, except in an emergency situation threatening life or property, shall be made by the Contractor without the prior written approval of the Owner. The Contractor shall deliver any request for a change in the Work, Contract price, and/or completion time in writing to Owner within ten (10) calendar days of the occurrence requiring the change. The Contractor shall be required to certify the cause of the change order and, if appropriate, length of time involved. Payment for such changes approved by Owner shall be as set forth in Section 19.7. This written request is a condition precedent to the consideration of any such request by the Owner.

#### D. Delays:

i. In the event a delay is caused by the Owner, any other separate contractor employed by the Owner, or any party for whom the Contractor deems the Owner responsible, or the agents and employees of any of them, the Contractor shall inform the Owner immediately at the time of the occurrence by the fastest means available and shall give written notice within a reasonable time, not to exceed ten (10) calendar days. The Contractor's notice to Owner shall specify the nature of the delay claimed by the Contractor, the cause of the delay, and the impact of the delay on the Contractor's work schedule to the fullest extent possible. The Owner will, within a reasonable time, not to exceed ten (10) calendar days, respond to the Contractor's notice with a resolution, remedy, or direction to alleviate the delay or with a notice rejecting the claim for delay alleged to be caused by the Owner or parties for whom the Owner is responsible. If the delay is not then resolved, the

- Contractor may then submit a request for change order in accordance with Sections 19.3 and 19.5. In the event of other delays, the Contractor shall give the Owner written notice within ten (10) calendar days of the occurrence causing the delay.
- ii. No extension of time or compensation shall be allowed for a delay if the Contractor failed to give notice in the manner and within the time prescribed in Subsection 19.4 (a). Furthermore, no extension of time shall be given or additional compensation allowed for any delay unless a claim is made in writing to the Owner, within ten (10) calendar days of the occurrence causing the delay. The claim shall state the cause of the delay, the number of days of extension requested, and any compensation requested by the Contractor. The Contractor shall report the resumption of work to the Owner not less than ten (10) calendar days after work resumes. Failure to give notice of either the inception or the termination of the cause of delay or failure to present a claim for extension of time and/or monetary compensation within the times prescribed are conditions precedent to the assertion of any such claims by Contractor and shall constitute a waiver by Contractor of any such claims for compensation or extension based upon that cause.
- iii. Requests for compensation for delays must be substantiated by itemized data and records clearly showing that the work delayed was progressing according to the approved schedule and that the costs are directly attributable to the delay in the Work claimed. The Contractor shall provide written schedules demonstrating how the Work being delayed affects the approved schedule.
- iv. No extension of time, additional compensation, or change in the Contract price shall be allowed for any delays caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any subcontractors, or any supplier. (For unavoidable justified delays, see Section 19.9 of these General Conditions.)
- E. Change Orders: All change orders must indicate that the Contract Time for Completion is not changed or is either increased or decreased by a specific number of days. Any change or requested change in the Contract price shall also be included in the change order. The Contractor must provide written justification for an extension of the Time for Completion to Owner. The written justification must demonstrate an anticipated actual increase in the time required to complete the Work beyond that allowed by the Contract as adjusted by prior change orders or amendments to the Contract, not just an increase or decrease in the time needed to complete some portion of the total Work. When a Critical Path Method (CPM) schedule is required by the Contract, or is used for the convenience of the Contractor, no increase to the Time for Completion shall be allowed unless, and then only to the extent that, the additional or changed Work increases the length of the critical path. Approved increases in time required to complete the Work shall be added to the Time for Completion. Decreases in time as a result of the change order shall be demonstrated by a decrease in the critical path of the work if CPM scheduling is properly used and updated by the Contractor. If not, the Owner shall determine the appropriate decrease by the best means possible. Approved decreases in the time needed to complete the Work shall be deducted from the Contract completion date. The change to time or Contract price allowed by each change order shall include all time and monetary impacts

of the change, whether the change order is considered alone or with all other changes during the course of the project. Failure to include a change to time and/or Contract price in a change order shall waive any claims the Contractor may have for any change to the time and/or Contract price unless the parties mutually agree in writing to postpone a determination of the change to time and price resulting from the change order. Such a determination may be postponed not more than forty-five (45) calendar days to give the Contractor an opportunity to demonstrate a change in the time and/or price needed to complete the Work. However, the Contractor shall continue with the Work as may be directed by Owner and shall not stop work on the Project unless directed to do so by Owner.

- F. Extra Work: The Owner reserves the right to make alterations or changes in the Work as the Work progresses. When any work is necessary to the proper completion of the project which was not provided for in the Contract, the Contractor shall do such work, but only when and as ordered in writing by Owner. Payment for such extra work shall be made as hereinafter provided in Section 19.7.
- G. Payment Methods for Extra Work: The extra work done by the Contractor as authorized and approved by Owner shall be paid for in the manner hereinafter described; and the compensation thus provided shall be accepted by the Contractor as payment in full for all labor, material, tools, equipment, incidentals, all superintendents' and timekeepers' services, all insurance, bonds, and all other reasonable overhead expenses incurred in the performance of the extra work. Payment for extra work may be made by one of the following methods, as agreed on in writing by Owner and the Contractor before said extra work is commenced, subject to all other conditions of the Contract:
  - i. Unit prices; or
  - ii. Lump sum price; or
  - iii. The cost of change in work plus ten percent (10%) of allowable costs. Allowable costs for purposes of this paragraph shall only include labor, material, sales tax, the rental of power tools and equipment actually used, or a reasonable price for the use of power tools and equipment owned by the Contractor based upon their life expectancy and purchase price, utilities, pro rata charges for foremen, and all payroll charges such as employer's FICA contribution, Public Liability and Workers' Compensation Insurance, but only if all such costs are incurred as the direct result of the changes in the Work. The change in cost for labor and material bonds and for performance bonds relative to the value of the extra work shall be allowable cost but shall not be marked up. If any subcontractor at any tier does all or part of the Work, the subcontractor's markup on that Work shall be fixed at fifteen percent (15%) of the allowable cost as defined herein.
- H. **Disputed Claims for Extra Work:** If one of the payment methods set forth in Section 19.7 is not agreed on by Owner, the Owner may retain either an independent contractor to perform such extra work or use its own forces to perform such extra work and the Contractor shall cooperate fully with the independent contractor or Owner in its performance of the extra work. However, Owner may also direct Contractor to perform

such extra work and any dispute will be handled as set forth in Section 31 of these General Conditions.

I. Change in Contract Time or Contract Price: The Contractor may request an extension of time or change in the Contract price should the Work be obstructed or delayed by any justified unavoidable delays not caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any subcontractor, or suppliers. However, delays caused by weather conditions will not be considered justified unavoidable delays unless they are caused by unusual weather as set forth in Section 4.2 of the Instructions to Bidders, in which case only an extension of time may be considered by Owner, but no additional compensation will be allowed for unusual weather. Furthermore, Contractor agrees that for any delays not caused by the Owner or any delays beyond the control of the Owner, no additional compensation will be due the Contractor and no change in the Contract price will be allowed by the Owner, only an extension of the Contract time will be considered by the Owner. The Contractor shall deliver requests for changes in the Contract price and/or completion time in writing to Owner within ten (10) calendar days of the occurrence requiring the change. Approved changes that alter the time of the Contract shall extend the completion time by a period equivalent to the certified time lost by such occurrence. No change in Contract price and/or completion time shall be allowed if the above notice has not been properly given, such notice being a condition precedent to any such request by the Contractor. However, the Contractor shall continue with the Work as may be directed by Owner and shall not stop work on the Project unless directed to do so by Owner.

#### **SECTION 52. PAYMENT FOR WORK**

- A. **Monthly Construction Estimates:** Monthly construction estimates shall be submitted to Owner, no more than once every thirty (30) calendar days.
- B. Preparing Progress Payment Requests: In preparing construction estimates, the Contractor may request a progress payment based on the actual percentage of work completed during the preceding month. The estimate shall contain a breakdown of the total Contract amount; to include a separate breakdown of all approved change orders, into principal items of construction, showing the estimated quantity, unit price, and total for each item. In preparing progress payment requests, the material delivered on the site and preparatory work done may be taken into consideration, if properly documented, or as may be required by Owner so that quantities can be verified. In addition to material delivered on the site, material such as large pieces of equipment and items purchased specifically for the project, but stored off the site, may be considered for payment, provided prior written approval is given by Owner.
- C. **Progress Payments:** The Owner will make a progress payment to the Contractor on the basis of a duly certified and approved progress payment request for the work performed under the Contract. In the event that the Owner disagrees with the monthly construction progress payment request submitted by the Contractor, or in the event the As-Built Drawings are not being kept current, the Owner may withhold all or a portion of the progress payment until such dispute is resolved to the satisfaction of the Owner. If there are any objections or problems with the progress payment request, the Owner will notify

the Contractor of such matters. If the progress payment request is approved by the Owner, payment will be made by the Owner to the Contractor not more than thirty (30) calendar days after such request has been approved. However, if there is an objection or problem with a progress payment request, the Contractor shall continue with the Work as may be directed by Owner and shall not stop work on the Project unless directed to do so by Owner. Any such disputes shall be handled as set forth in Section 31 of these General Conditions.

- D. **Retainage:** To ensure proper performance of the Contract, the Owner shall retain, unless stipulated otherwise, five percent (5%) of each progress payment until Final Acceptance of all work covered by the Contract. The Contractor may request that such retainage be paid into an escrow account on certain Contracts, pursuant to Section 2.2-4334 of the Code of Virginia. (See also Sections 6.2 and 14.6 of Instructions to Bidders.)
- E. Ownership of Material and Work: All material and work covered by progress payments shall become the property of the Owner. This provision shall not relieve the Contractor from the responsibility for all material and to maintain all completed work and to repair all damaged work. The Contractor shall not deem a progress payment as a waiver to complete the terms of the Contract or shift the risk of loss from the Contractor to the Owner. The Contractor warrants that Contractor has good title to all material, equipment, and supplies which Contractor uses in the Work or for which Contractor accepts payment in whole or in part.
- F. Payments to Others by Contractor: The Contractor agrees that Contractor will comply with the requirements of Section 2.2-4354 of the Code of Virginia regarding Contractor's payment to other entities and that Contractor will take one of the two actions permitted therein within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of amounts paid to Contractor by the Owner. The Contractor agrees that Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Owner, its governing body, officers, agents, and employees harmless for any lawful claims resulting from failure of the Contractor to make prompt payments to all persons supplying him equipment, labor, tools, or material in prosecution and completion of the Work provided for in the Contract. In the event of such claims, the Owner may, after providing written notice to the Contractor, withhold from any progress and/or final payment the unpaid sum of money deemed sufficient to pay all lawful claims and associated costs in connection with the Contract.
- G. **Final Payment:** Within thirty (30) calendar days after the Final Acceptance of the Work, the Owner shall pay the Contractor the Final Payment, less all prior payments, damages, setoffs, liquidated damages, any amounts withheld from retainage, or any other amounts Contractor may owe the Owner for any reason whatever.
- H. **Payment and Acceptance:** No payment, final or otherwise, nor partial or entire use, occupancy, or acceptances of the Work by the Owner shall be an acceptance of any work or material not in accordance with the Contract, nor shall the same relieve the Contractor of any responsibility for any faulty material or workmanship or operate to release the

Contractor or its surety from any obligation under the Contract or the Performance Bond or the Labor and Material Payment Bond.

I. **Right to Audit:** The Contractor agrees that the Owner, and any approving Federal or State Agency or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, documents, papers, records, schedules and electronic data of the Contractor which are pertinent to this Project for the purpose of making an audit, examinations, excerpts, copies or transcriptions and that Contractor will provide copies of such items to Owner upon Owner's request, at no cost to Owner.

#### SECTION 53. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

If liquidated damages are provided by the Contract, the following provisions shall apply:

- i. Subject to the provisions of the General Conditions granted for extension of time allowed for completion of the Work, if the Work is not substantially completed by the date required in the Contract, the Contractor shall owe to the Owner, not as a penalty but as step one liquidated damages, the sum stated in the Contract for step one liquidated damages for each and every calendar day of delay in substantial completion.
- ii. Once the Work is substantially complete, the accrual of step one liquidated damages shall stop and the Contractor shall have thirty (30) calendar days in which to achieve Final Acceptance of the Work.
- iii. If Final Acceptance of the Work is not achieved by the thirtieth (30th) calendar day after substantial completion, and if any extension of time is not granted by the Owner, the Contractor shall owe to the Owner, not as a penalty but as step two liquidated damages, the sum stated in the Contract as step two liquidated damages for each and every calendar day of delay in Final Acceptance. All such liquidated damages set forth in this Section are in addition to any other damages the Owner may be entitled to recover from the Contractor.

## SECTION 54. INSPECTION FOR SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE

- A. **Substantial Completion:** The Contractor shall notify the Owner, in writing, that the Work will be ready for inspection to determine if it is substantially complete and ready for testing on or after a certain date, which date shall be stated in the notice. The notice shall be given at least ten (10) calendar days in advance of said date and shall be forwarded through Owner. Inspection and testing shall take place at a time mutually agreeable to the Contractor and Owner. The inspection shall determine if substantial completion has been accomplished. If so, Owner will issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion and attach a written list of unfinished Work and defective Work, commonly referred to as a "punch list", which must be finished and corrected to obtain Final Acceptance.
- B. **Request for Final Acceptance:** The Contractor shall notify Owner, in writing, that the Work will be ready for final inspection and testing on or after a certain date, which date shall be stated in the notice. That inspection and any necessary testing shall be conducted in the same manner as the inspection for substantial completion. When the Work is

finally and totally complete, including the elimination of all known deficiencies, the Work shall be finally accepted by the Owner and final payment shall be made in accordance with Section 20.7 of these General Conditions.

- C. **Final Inspection:** Owner will conduct the final inspection, and may elect to have other persons of its choosing also participate in the inspection. If re-inspection is required, the Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for all costs of re-inspection or, at the Owner's option, the costs may be deducted from payments due to the Contractor.
- D. **As-Built Drawings:** No Contract retainage will be released prior to receipt of all approved As-Built Drawings.
- E. **Final Acceptance:** Upon successful completion of the final inspection and all Work required by the Contract, including but not limited to the delivery of the following documents and items; As-Built drawings, operation and maintenance manuals, written warranties, Certificate of Substantial Completion, Affidavit of Payment of Claims, and MBE/WBE/SB/VB Usage Status Form, Owner will furnish a written Certificate of Final Acceptance of the Work to the Contractor. Owner may accept the Work for occupancy or use while asserting claims against the Contractor, disputing the amount of compensation due to the Contractor, disputing the quality of the Work, its completion, or its compliance with the Contract Documents, and the like.
- F. **Release By Contractor:** The acceptance by the Contractor of the final payment or a payment designated as such shall be and does operate as a release by the Contractor of all claims by the Contractor against Owner and of all other liability of the Owner to the Contractor whatever, including liability for all things done or furnished in connection with the Work or the Contract.

#### SECTION 55. GUARANTEE OF WORK

- A. **Two Year Warranty:** The Contractor does warrant and guarantee the Work against defects or deficiencies in the Work and in all material, equipment, and workmanship for a period of two (2) years from the date of Final Acceptance.
- B. **Defective Work:** The Contractor agrees it shall repair or replace, at Contractor's sole expense, and to the satisfaction of Owner, any work, material, equipment, or part that is found, by Owner, to be defective.
- C. **Repairs:** If, within any guarantee period, defects are noticed by Owner which require repairs or changes in connection with the guaranteed work, those repairs or changes being in the determination of Owner rendered necessary as the result of the use of material, equipment, or workmanship which is defective, inferior, or not in accordance with the terms of the Contract, then the Contractor shall, promptly upon receipt of notice from Owner, such notice being given not more than four weeks after the expiration of any such guarantee period, and without any expense to the Owner:
  - i. Place in satisfactory condition all guaranteed work and correct all defects therein; and

- ii. Make good all damage to the structure, site, equipment, or contents thereof, which in the determination of Owner is the result of the use of material, equipment, or workmanship which are inferior, defective, or not in accordance with the terms of the Contract; and
- iii. Make good any work or material or the equipment and contents of structures or the site disturbed in fulfilling any such guarantee.
- D. **Warranty Extension:** In any case, where in fulfilling the requirements of the Contract or any guarantee embraced in or required thereby, the Contractor disturbs, damages or repairs any work guaranteed under the Contract, Contractor shall restore such work to a condition satisfactory to Owner and guarantee such restored work to the same extent and for a like additional period of time as it was originally guaranteed under this Contract.
- E. The Design-Builder agrees to assign to Owner at the time of final completion of the Work all manufacturer's warranties relating to equipment, materials, and labor used in the Work and further agrees to perform the Work in such manner so as to preserve any and all such manufacturer's warranties. If necessary as a matter of law, the Design-Builder may retain the right to enforce directly any such manufacturers' warranties during the one-year period following the date of Substantial Completion.
- F. Correction of Defects: If the Contractor, after notice, fails to proceed promptly, but in no event longer than thirty (30) calendar days after such notice, unless otherwise agreed to by Owner, to comply with the terms of the guarantee and/or correct the Work, the Owner may have the defects corrected by its own forces or another contractor and the Contractor and its surety shall be liable for all costs and expenses incurred in doing so.
- G. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to any other obligation which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents or the law of Virginia, including liability for defective work.

#### SECTION 56. STOP WORK ORDER

In the event that conditions exist such that no work can or should continue, other than the routine closing of the site, the Contractor may submit to Owner a request to stop work or Owner on its own may issue a Stop Work Order. Owner designee will, if he/she approves the request or issues the order himself/herself, deliver a written "Stop Work Order" to the Contractor stipulating the effective date and the Contract time remaining. The Work, other than the routine closing of the site, and Contract time shall not again be started until a written "Resume Work Order" is received by the Contractor from Owner. When the Work is stopped at the request of the Contractor and through no fault of the Contractor, the Contractor may only recover from the Owner payment for the cost of the Work actually performed, together with reasonable overhead and profit thereon up to that time, but profit shall be recovered only to the extent that the Contractor can demonstrate that it would have had profit on the entire Contract if it had completed the Work. The Contractor may not receive profit or any other type of compensation for parts of the Work not performed, including, but not limited to, home office overhead or any other such costs. The Contractor may also recover the actual cost of physically closing down the jobsite, but no other costs of the Stop Work Order. The Owner may offset any claims it may

have against the Contractor against the amounts due to the Contractor. In no event shall the Stop Work Order to the Contractor relieve in any way the obligations of the Contractor's surety on its payment and performance bonds. When work is stopped by Owner due to any fault of the Contractor, the Contractor may not recover any of the above costs or items or any other costs, profits, expenses, or damages of any type.

#### SECTION 57. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE

- A. Termination for Cause: If the Contractor should be adjudged a bankrupt, or if it should make a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed on account of its insolvency, the Owner may terminate the Contract. If the Contractor should refuse or should fail, except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper material, or if it should fail to make prompt payment to subcontractors or suppliers of material or labor, or disregard laws, ordinances, or the written instructions of Owner, or otherwise fails to comply with any of the terms or provisions of this Contract including, but not limited to, poor services, deficient work or material, the Owner may terminate this Contract. In no event shall termination for cause terminate the obligations of the Contractor's surety on its payment and performance bonds.
- B. **Possession of Work:** Upon termination of the Contract, the Owner may take possession of the premises and of all material, tools, and appliances thereon and finish the Work by whatever method the Owner may deem expedient. In such case the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment of any type. If the expense of finishing the Work, including compensation for additional managerial and administrative services, shall exceed the unpaid balance of the Contract price, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner, together with any other cost or expenses of terminating the Contract and having it completed by others, together with any and all other damages Owner may be entitled to from the Contractor.

#### SECTION 58. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF OWNER

- A. **Termination for Convenience:** The Owner, at its discretion, may terminate this Contract at any time without cause, in whole or in part, upon giving the Contractor 7 days written notice of such termination. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall immediately cease work and remove from the jobsite all of its labor forces, equipment, and material as Owner elect not to purchase or to assume in the manner hereinafter provided. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall take such steps as Owner may require assigning to the Owner the Contractor's interest in all subcontracts and purchase orders designated by Owner. After all such steps have been taken to Owner's satisfaction; the Contractor shall receive as full compensation for termination and assignment only the following:
  - i. All amounts then otherwise due under the terms of this Contract for actual work performed and approved by Owner; and
  - ii. Reasonable compensation for the actual cost of demobilization incurred by the Contractor as a direct result of such termination. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation for lost profits or for any other type of contractual compensation or damage, other than those provided by the preceding sentence,

including any on site or home office overhead. Upon payment of the foregoing, Owner shall have no further liabilities or obligations to Contractor of any nature.

B. **Termination Effect on Surety:** In no event shall termination for the convenience of the Owner terminate the obligation of the Contractor's surety on its payment and performance bonds.

#### SECTION 59. PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE

Owner shall notify the Contractor as to the location, date, and time of a preconstruction conference to confirm procedures for processing construction estimates for payment and related submissions and to discuss other matters pertaining to scheduling and execution of the Work.

#### **SECTION 60. PROJECT SIGN(S)**

The Contractor shall supply, erect, and maintain Project Sign(s) in accordance with the County of Roanoke Standard Detail. The sign(s) shall be located as directed by Owner. The Contractor shall not display any other signs or advertisements.

#### **SECTION 61. ENTIRE CONTRACT.**

This Contract, including any attachments, exhibits, and referenced documents, constitutes the complete understanding between the parties. This Contract may be modified only by written agreement properly executed by the parties.

#### **SECTION 62. PROHIBITED PROVISIONS.**

The terms of this Contract cannot include any provision that:

- A. is in conflict with Virginia law;
- B. makes the contract subject to, governed by, or interpreted under the laws of a state or country other than the Commonwealth of Virginia;
- C. requires or permits any litigation arising from the public contract to be conducted in a court other than those located in the Commonwealth of Virginia;
- D. requires other dispute resolution proceedings arising from the public contract to be conducted outside of the Commonwealth of Virginia;
- E. limits the liability of the Contractor for actual damages to Owner property or for personal injury; or
- F. requires the Owner to indemnify or hold harmless the Contractor for the Contractor's (or Contractor's subcontractors' or agents') negligent actions or inactions.

Any provision attempting to include such terms shall be null and void, and the remainder of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

#### SECTION 63. "ALL RISK" BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE.

A. The Contractor, at his cost, shall obtain and maintain in the names of the Owner and the Contractor "all-risk" builder's risk insurance (or fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief insurance, if approved by the Owner upon the entire structure or structures on which the Work of this Contract is to be done and upon all material in or

adjacent thereto which is intended for use thereon, to one hundred percent (100%) of the insurable value thereof. Such insurance may include a deductible provision if the Owner so provides in the Supplemental General Conditions, in which case the Contractor will be liable for such deductions, whenever a claim arises. The loss, if any, is to be made adjustable with and payable to the Owner, in accordance with its interests, as they may appear. The Owner, its officers, employees and its agents, shall be named as an additional insured in any policy of insurance issued. Written evidence of the insurance shall be filed with the Owner no later than thirty (30) days following the award of the Contract. In the event of cancellation of this insurance, not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice must be sent to the Owner. A copy of the policy of insurance shall be given to the Owner upon demand.

- B. The value of the builder's risk insurance shall exclude the costs of demolitions, excavations, backfills, foundations, underground utilities and Sitework.
- C. Any insurance provided through the Department of Treasury, Division of Risk Management, on buildings, construction, additions or renovations will not extend to Contractor's nor Subcontractors' buildings, equipment, materials, tools or supplies unless these items are to become property of the Owner upon completion of the Project and the Owner has assumed responsibility for such items at the time of the loss.

THIS AGREEMENT 2026-064 may be modified in writing by mutual agreement of all parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Contract by their authorized representatives.

(FULL LEGAL NAME OF VENDOR)
By
Printed Name and Title
ROANOKE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
By
Printed Name and Title
Approved as to form:
County Attorney/Assistant County Attorney

#### **CONTRACT 2026-064**

## BETWEEN ROANOKE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND [VENDOR NAME] FOR ROANOKE COUNTY PARKS, RECREATION & TOURISM BUILDING RENOVATIONS

#### **EXHIBIT 1: SAMPLE CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE AND BOND REQUIREMENTS**

**REFERENCE: IFB # 2026-064** 

#### INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS SECTION

The Contractor shall comply with the insurance requirements set forth in the Contract, including the items set forth below:

- A. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall commence work under this Contract until the Contractor has obtained and provided proof of the required insurance coverages to the Owner, and such proof has been approved by the Owner. The Contractor confirms to the Owner that all subcontractors have provided Contractor with proof of such insurance, or will do so prior to commencing any work under this Contract.
- B. Contractor, including all subcontractors, shall, at its and/or their sole expense, obtain and maintain during the life of this Contract the insurance policies and/or coverages required by this section. The Owner and its officers, employees, agents, assigns, and volunteers shall be added as an additional insureds, by endorsement, to the general liability and automobile coverages of any such policies and such insurance coverages shall be primary and noncontributory to any insurance and/or self-insurance such additional insureds may have. The Contractor shall immediately notify in writing the Owner of any changes, modifications, and/or termination of any insurance coverages and/or policies required by this Contract. The Contractor shall provide to the Owner with the signed Contract an Acord certificate of insurance which states in the description of operations section one of the two paragraphs below:
  - (1) The Owner and its officers, employees, agents, assigns, and volunteers are additional insureds by endorsement as coverage under this policy includes ISO endorsement CG 20 33 which provides that the insured status of such entities is automatic if required by a contract or a written agreement. (If additional insured status is automatic under a different coverage form, Contractor must attach a copy of the coverage form to its certificate. Any required insurance policies shall be effective prior to the beginning of any work or other performance by Contractor and any subcontractors under this Contract).

OR

(2) ISO endorsement CG 20 10 will be issued, prior to the beginning of any work or other performance by Contractor under this Contract, to the Owner and its officers, employees, agents, assigns, and volunteers naming them as an additional insured under the general liability coverage. (A copy of the binder confirming the issuance must be attached to the certificate. Any required insurance policies shall be

effective prior to the beginning of any work or other performance by Contractor and any subcontractors under this Contract).

However, if B (1) or (2) cannot be provided, the Owner's Risk Manager, in such Manager's sole discretion, may approve such other certificate of insurance or insurance document(s) that the Risk Manager deems acceptable. The Owner shall also be named as the Certificate Holder.

C. The following insurance coverages and limits are required in order to provide services or materials to Roanoke County general government agencies and the Roanoke County Public Schools. These limits may be adjusted depending on the type of service or materials being provided and the exposure to risk.

The Successful Offeror shall carry Liability Insurance in the amount specified below, including contractual liability assumed by the Successful Offeror, and shall deliver a Certificate of Insurance from carriers acceptable to the owner specifying such limits. The Certificate shall show the County of Roanoke and Roanoke County Public Schools, their supervisory boards and members thereof, officers, agents, employees and volunteers as additional insureds by endorsement, on the Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Excess/Umbrella Liability coverage. The additional insured status shall be endorsed to the coverage with the provision that this coverage "is primary to all other coverage the Owner may possess." A Certificate of Insurance evidencing the additional insured status must be presented to the Owner along with a copy of the Endorsement prior to work or services beginning.

The coverage shall be provided by a carrier(s) rated "Excellent" by A.M. Best. In addition, the insurer shall agree to give the Owner 30 days' notice of its decision to cancel coverage.

#### (1) Workers' Compensation

Statutory Virginia Limits Employers' Liability Insurance

- \$100,000 for each Accident by employee
- \$100,000 for each Disease by employee
- \$500,000 policy limit by Disease

#### (2) <u>Commercial General Liability - Combined Single Limit</u>

- \$2,000,000 each occurrence including contractual liability for specified agreement
- \$5,000,000 General Aggregate (other than Products/Completed Operations)
- \$2,000,000 General Liability-Products/Completed Operations
- \$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising injury
- \$ 100,000 Fire Damage Legal Liability

Coverage must include Broad Form property damage and (XCU) Explosion, Collapse and Underground Coverage

- (3) <u>Business Automobile Liability</u> including owned, non-owned and hired car coverage
  - Combined Single Limit \$1,000,000 each accident

Compliance by the Contractor with the foregoing requirements as to carrying insurance shall not relieve the Contractor of their liabilities provisions of the Contract

- D. Contractual Liability covers the following indemnity agreement: "The Successful Offeror agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Owner, their supervisory boards and members thereof, officers, agents, employees and volunteers from any claims, damages, suits, actions, liabilities and costs of any kind or nature, including attorneys' fees, arising from or caused by the provision of any services, the failure to provide any services or the use of any services or materials furnished (or made available) by the Successful Offeror, provided that such liability is not attributable to the Owner's sole negligence."
- E. The continued maintenance of the insurance policies and coverages required by the Agreement is a continuing obligation, and the lapse and/or termination of any such policies or coverages without approved replacement policies and/or coverages being obtained shall be grounds for termination of the Consultant/Contractor for default.
- F. Nothing contained in the insurance requirements is to be construed as limiting the liability of the Consultant/Contractor, and/or its subcontractors, or their insurance carriers. The Owner does not in any way represent that the coverages or the limits of insurance specified are sufficient or adequate to protect the Consultant/Contractor's interest or liabilities, but are merely minimums. The obligation of the Consultant/Contractor, and its subcontractors, to purchase insurance shall not in any way limit the obligations of the Consultant/Contractor in the event that the Owner or any of those named above should suffer any injury or loss in excess of the amount actually recoverable through insurance.
- G. The classification code numbers appearing on the Commercial General Liability coverage parts shall not exclude the symbols "X-C-U".
- H. The intent of this insurance specification is to provide the coverage required and the limits expected for each type of coverage. With regard to the Business Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability, the total amount of coverage can be accomplished through any combination of primary and excess/umbrella insurance. However, the total insurance protection provided for Commercial General Liability or for Business Automobile Liability, either individually or in combination with the Excess/Umbrella Liability, must total \$1,000,000 per occurrence. This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self-insurance programs afforded the Owner. This policy shall be endorsed to be primary with respect to the additional insured.
- I. The certificate holders on the Accord form Certificates of Insurance shall be:

Roanoke County Board of Supervisors 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300F

Roanoke, VA 24019-0798 Attn: Purchasing Dept.

#### J. Claims Made Policies

If the liability insurance has been issued on a "claims made" basis, the Successful Offeror must either:

- (1) Agree to provide certificates of insurance evidencing the above coverage for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement for General Liability policies. This certificate shall evidence a "retroactive date" no later than the beginning of the Offeror's work; or
- (2) Purchase the extended reporting period endorsement for the policies and provide certificates of insurance and a copy of the endorsement.

#### BOND REQUIREMENTS SECTION

The Contractor shall comply with the bond requirements set forth in the Contract, including the items set forth below:

- A. Except in cases of emergency, all bids for construction contracts shall be accompanied by a bid bond from a surety company selected by the bidder, which is legally authorized to do business in Virginia.
  - (1) A bid, payment or performance bond for contracts for goods or services other than construction may be required if provided in the Invitation for Bid.
  - (2) The amount of the bid bond shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the total amount of the bid.
  - (3) In lieu of a bid bond, a bidder may furnish a certified check or cash escrow in the face amount required for the bond.
  - (4) Upon award of any public construction contract exceeding \$100,000 awarded to any prime contractor, such contractor shall furnish:
    - i. Performance bond in the sum of the contract amount.
    - ii. Payment bond in the sum of the contract amount.
  - (5) Upon award of any construction contract of any value for which the Virginia Resources Authority provides financing, any prime contractor shall furnish:
    - i. Performance bond in the sum of the contract amount listing Virginia Resources Authority and U.S. Bank as beneficiaries.
    - ii. Payment bond in the sum of the contract amount listing Virginia Resources Authority and U.S. Bank as beneficiaries.

- (6) Performance and/or payment bonds may be required for construction contracts below \$100,000 at the discretion of the Owner.
- (7) In cases of emergency performance bonds/payment bonds are required within ten (10) calendar days of notice to proceed/project commencement.

**END** 

## CONTRACT 2026-064 BETWEEN ROANOKE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND VENDOR NAME FOR ROANOKE COUNTY PARKS, RECREATION & TOURISM BUILDING RENOVATIONS

#### **EXHIBIT 2: SCOPE OF WORK/FEE SCHEDULE**

REFERENCE: IFB# 2026-064

The following are the services and/or items that the Successful Bidder will be required to provide and such services are to be included in the bids.

The services, work, and/or items that the Contractor shall provide in a timely and proper manner in accordance with the Contract include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

Reference scope and specifications within IFB 2026-064, as well as Project Plans included as Attachment G to IFB 2026-064.

# CONTRACT 2026-064 BETWEEN ROANOKE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND VENDOR NAME FOR ROANOKE COUNTY PARKS, RECREATION & TOURISM BUILDING RENOVATIONS

#### **EXHIBIT 3: BID FORM COMPLETED BY CONTRACTOR**

REFERENCE: IFB# 2026-064

#### IFB # 2026-064

### ATTACHMENT F: ASBESTOS INSPECTION REPORT AND ASBESTOS ABATEMENT

#### The Below Item Is Available as a Separate Downloadable Item to This Project

Asbestos Reports
4818 Starkey Road, Roanoke, VA
Prepared by A&L Environmental, Inc.
Dated March 16, 2025 (Ground Level Office Space and Kitchen Area) and August 24, 2025 (Lower Roof)

Asbestos Abatement
PCM Clearance - 4818 Starkey Road, Roanoke, VA
Contractor: E. Luke Greene Company
Environmental Consulting: Rugby Environmental

PCM Fiber Count Analysis Date: September 15, 2025

#### **ATTACHMENT G: PROJECT PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS**

#### The Below Items Are Available as Separate Downloadable Items to This Project:

Project plans titled: Roanoke County Parks, Rec & Tourism Office Building Renovations 4818 Starkey Road Roanoke County, Virginia

Dated: 2025-09-30

Project Manual Roanoke County Parks, Rec & Tourism Office Building Renovations 4818 Starkey Road Roanoke County, Virginia

Dated: 2025-10-27